Scrutiny Committee
12 July 2017
7.00 pm at the
Civic Offices, St Nicholas Way, Sutton SM1 1EA



To all members of the Scrutiny Committee:Chair:
Vice-Chair
Councillors:

Councillor Pathumal Ali
Councillor Edward Joyce
Chris Williams, Mary Burstow, David Bartolucci, Nick Emmerson,
Doug Hunt, Edward Joyce, Patrick McManus, Ali Mirhashem and
Callum Morton

Substitutes:

Neil Garratt, Vincent Galligan, Sunita Gordon, Holly Ramsey and
Nali Patel

This is a Council meeting held in public. Additional representations are at the invitation of the Chair
of the Committee. If you are a relevant organisation and you wish to submit representations on a
proposal contained within the reports to this agenda please submit a request via Committee
Services three working days before the meeting date.
Members of the public have a statutory entitlement to record meetings to which they are admitted,
subject to it not disrupting the meeting. They should record only the meeting and not the audience.
Anyone proposing to make a recording must inform the Committee Services contact below before
the meeting. Mobile devices can interfere with the wireless microphones and induction loop, and if
that is the case the Chair may require that such devices are turned off.
This meeting will be recorded and made available on the Council’s website.

Niall Bolger
Chief Executive
Friday 30 June 2017

Enquiries to: Aimee Wittams-Smith, Democratic Services Officer
Tel.: 020 8770 4990, Email: committeeservices@sutton.gov.uk

Copies of reports are available in large print on request

AGENDA

1.

Apologies for absence and notifications of substitutes

2.

Minutes of the last meeting

3-8

To agree and sign as a correct record of the meeting held on 8 February 2017.
3.

Declarations of interest

4.

St Raphael's Hospice
Councillor Chris Williams to provide a verbal update following his visit to St
Raphael's Hospice.
Indicative timing: 5 minutes

5.

Healthwatch Update

9 - 58

David Williams, Chair of Healthwatch, and Pete Flavell, Healthwatch Sutton
Manager, to provide an update on the Healthwatch Sutton ‘Inpatient Care’
report.
Indicative timing: 15 minutes
6.

St George’s Mental Health Trust

59 - 68

David Bradley, Chief Executive of St Georges Mental Health NHS Trust invited
to provide an update and discuss new service arrangements.
Indicative timing: 20 minutes
7.

Epsom and St Helier NHS Trust - updates

69 - 86

Daniel Elkeles, Chief Executive of Epsom and St Helier NHS Trust to attend to
discuss the written update from the Trust on performance as well as progress
on the estates review and progress on the the recent CQC inspection action
plan
Indicative timing: 20 minutes
8.

Engagement on the future of Epsom and St Helier
Daniel Elkeles, Chief Executive of Epsom and St Helier NHS Trust to introduce
engagement regarding future scenarios for Epsom and St Helier hospitals.
Indicative timing: 15 minutes

9.

Sustainability and Transformation Plan (STP) and NHS Sutton CCG
Dr Chris Elliott to attend from Sutton NHS Clinical Commissioning Group, to
provide an update on the South West London STP.
Indicative timing: 15 minutes

10.

Any urgent business
Brought forward at the discretion of the Chair.

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 1

Agenda Annex

CIVIC OFFICES, SUTTON
GROUND FLOOR MEETING ROOMS
FIRE PRECAUTIONS
If there is a FIRE in the building the fire alarm will sound. Leave the building
immediately by the most direct route, either back through reception or the fire exit
into Lower Square. Take your coat and any bags with you. Assemble in the car
park in front of the Holiday Inn.

Toilet

Toilet
Room 1

Toilet

Toilet

Reception

Room
5

Room
4

Fire
Exit

Room
2

Room
3

Entrance
Lower Square

Exit

Holiday Inn
Car Park

Page 2

Agenda Annex

Reminder – Declarations of Interests
Members should consider the following interests and whether they have any they
should declare.
Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
Where you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any business of the Authority at
this meeting and you have either declared it beforehand in the Register of Members’
Interests or to the Monitoring Officer for entry in the Register you must state at this
meeting that you have such an interest and then withdraw from the room or chamber
where the meeting is being held whilst that business is considered.
Where you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any business of the Authority at
this meeting and have not previously declared it you must declare the nature of that
interest at this meeting and then withdraw from the room or chamber where the
meeting is being held whilst that business is considered.
Other Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests
Where you have any other pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest in any business at
this meeting you must declare that interest, but may continue to speak and vote on
the matter. However, if the interest is one which a member of the public, with
knowledge of the relevant facts, would reasonably regard as so significant that it is
likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest then you should declare the
interest and withdraw from the room or chamber where the meeting is being held
whilst that business is considered.
Further information on these matters can be found in the Council's Code of Conduct
and Constitution. If you are in any doubt as to whether you have an interest you
should seek advice before the committee meeting from Alexa Coates.
If, during the course of the committee meeting, you consider you may have an
interest you should always declare it.

Page 3

Agenda Item 2
Scrutiny Committee
8 February 2017

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
8 February 2017 at 7.00 pm

MEMBERS:

21.

Councillor Pathumal Ali (Chair), Councillor Edward Joyce (Vice-Chair)
and Councillors Chris Williams, Mary Burstow, David Bartolucci,
Nick Emmerson, Doug Hunt, Patrick McManus, Ali Mirhashem and
Callum Morton

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND NOTIFICATIONS OF SUBSTITUTES

Peter Flavell from Healthwatch sent apologies for item 5 on the agenda.

22.

MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING

The minutes of the meeting held on 2 November 2016 were agreed and signed as a correct
record.

23.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

24.

CHAIR’S Q&A

Councillor Wendy Mathys attended to respond to questions in her role as Chair of Children,
Families and Education Committee. The questions and answers are set out as an appendix
to the minutes.
Councillor Ali informed the Committee that as a large number of questions had been
received, any questions that were not reached would be answered in writing and published
as part of the appendix to the minutes.

25.

HEALTHWATCH UPDATE

David Williams, Chair of Healthwatch Sutton introduced the Healthwatch report on ‘Caring
for People with Dementia’. He informed the Committee that it had been a difficult report that
had uncovered some disturbing realisations and had produced more recommendations than
any other report. He raised concern that some of the recommendations would not be
received well or acted on by the relevant sources, in spite of Healthwatch’s efforts to follow
up recommendations. He confirmed that Healthwatch would work with anybody involved in
order to help them.
Councillor Ali thanked the volunteers involved in researching and writing the report. The
Committee discussed what could be done in Sutton, and David Williams said that he would
encourage Sutton as an authority and large employers to become champions in supporting
sufferers and reducing the stigma surrounding recognising it in its early stages.
Following a question from Councillor McManus, David Williams confirmed that there was not
a known cause of dementia and its alleged connection to pollution was not covered in the
paper but there was a study last year that demonstrates that it may be possible to test what
illnesses people are likely to be prone to earlier on in life. Councillors Bartolucci and
Williams raised concerns about reductions in mental health budgets and the greater amount
of reported incidents of dementia.

1

Agenda Item 2

Page 4

Scrutiny Committee
8 February 2017
Councillor Burstow proposed that Scrutiny Committee recommended that the report should
be considered by Council or be distributed to all members as it was important that all
Councillors read it. The Committee agreed.
Councillor Mirhashem asked whether the rate of incidence of Dementia in Sutton was similar
to elsewhere in the country and David Williams informed the Committee that some areas
have a greater level of elderly residents/care homes so may be more likely to report more
incidence, he felt that Sutton should focus on ‘upskilling’ the people working in care homes
to look out for the early signs of it.
Councillor Ali asked whether the report had uncovered any particular equalities aspects of
caring for people with dementia, and how Healthwatch planned to engage with minorities
and grassroot communities. David Williams responded that Healthwatch had received some
money last year which they intended to use for grassroots engagement. From their research
papers, Healthwatch had found that some groups prefer to keep to themselves and do not
welcome the help of outsiders, and they hoped that by having champions that are already
part of communities they would be able to spread the message via trusted members of
communities.
RESOLVED: The committee agreed to suggest that the Healthwatch report be considered
by Council and agreed to revisit the topic in a year’s time.
[post-meeting note: It was confirmed that an electronic version of the report would be
distributed to all Councillors via the Members Information Bulletin]

26.

EPSOM AND ST HELIER NHS TRUST

Daniel Elkeles, Chief Executive of the Epsom and St Helier NHS Trust attended to discuss
the Quality and Performance report, in particular:
 Mortality rates were lower and the Trust continued to improve on Health and Safety.
 The Trust had achieved Q3 cancer targets
 Their A&E remained the best performing trust in London and County Surrey, as the only
Trust achieving above government standards. He informed the Committee that present
figures were lower than in the report at 91.5% meeting the four hour waiting time target.
 Daniel Elkeles offered his thanks to the Council as Social Services had been very
responsive in recent months
 The Trust would be allowed a £15m deficit this financial year, and the deficit had
decreased since the report was submitted.
Councillor Mirhashem raised concerns about the information provided, as the contents of
the reports received from ESTH NHS Trust had reduced compared with what has been
provided previously, he felt that the first two pages were not very informative and that the
stakeholder letter did not contain information relevant to Scrutiny Committee. Daniel Elkeles
offered to produce specific reports to scrutinise certain aspects at the Committee’s request.
He also informed the Committee that the Trust had started putting a lot more information in
the public domain on their website and had no issue with being transparent.
Councillor Burstow expressed similar concerns and asked what problems the Trust were
facing, particularly with regards to the building. Daniel Elkeles confirmed that the building
was in a terrible state of repair and that the ‘Backlog Critical Maintenance’ Bill for St Helier
was at £80m. He felt that the successes outweighed the issues and directed the Committee
to the negative issues outlined in the report:
 The Trust have a massive deficit
 They did not achieve the 6 week diagnostic standard

2

Page 5

Agenda Item 2
Scrutiny Committee
8 February 2017

 They did not achieve the 18 week target for referral to treatment
 Infection control was poor
Councillor McManus asked how many of the problems would be solved by improving the
building and what ‘Save St Helier’ meant to the Trust. Daniel Elkeles responded that a lot of
the Trust’s downfalls were related to the poor state of the building and that they had found it
hard to recruit staff when there was a possibility of closure. Mr Elkeles felt that if the Trust
were able to prove that they could deliver excellent services then they would be more likely
to receive the Capital funding to improve the building, which would help to keep Epsom and
St Helier open.
Following a question regarding the Action Points that had arisen from the CQC inspection in
2016, Daniel Elkeles updated the Committee that 230 of the 364 actions had been
completed and that the Board had set a target to complete them all by the end of the
financial year. He informed the Committee that the Trust expected that the CQC may return
in Q1 of the year. Mr Elkeles considered that should the remaining unactioned points all be
related to the environment, it could be possible that doing well in all the other areas may
result in improved inroads into the infrastructure issues and gaining some funding.
Following a question from Councillor Williams regarding the success of the A&E targets,
Daniel Elkeles responded that the Trust had a better decision-making triage at the beginning
of the visits to establish who needs to be seen and urgently with a series of GPs for more
minor problems and Consultants available for referrals from GPs early on in the process,
reducing the number of admittances. He also credited a multi-disciplinary team that meets
each morning to discuss which patients can be sent home, and what support they would
need, a nursing home vanguard who assist with discharging people early, and a ‘care closer
to home’ ward to assist people with being able to get home and reduce their stay.
Cllr Mirhashem followed up the question to ask whether resources had been pooled from
other departments to maintain standards and whether there was a shift towards specialising
in A&E care. Daniel Elkeles confirmed that a lot of areas had been pooled, and that there
was attention on A&E versus planned care. He cited the Orthopedic unit as an example of
where care had been separated out to provide a better service and informed the Committee
that Epsom and St Helier were becoming a single hospital working on two sites as opposed
to two separate hospitals, with more critical services at St Helier and more planned care at
Epsom, and less duplicated services.
Councillor Ali thanked the Trust for inviting the Committee to their Quality Accounts meeting
however stated that the invitation was given at very short notice making it difficult to attend,
and that they did not have any of the paperwork in order to comment. Daniel Elkeles
apologised and confirmed that he would endeavor to avoid this occurring in the future.

27.

SUTTON CCG

Paul Sarfaty (Vice Chair of the Primary Care Commissioning Committee) introduced the
Primary Care Commissioning Committee and explained that When Primary Care Trusts
ceased to exist in March 2013, responsibility for primary care in Sutton went to NHS
England initially until April 2015 when responsibility was shared with the CCG, until April
2016 when sole responsibility moved to the CCG. He explained that the Chair and Vice
Chair of the Commissioning Committee (PCCC) were lay members, and that the Sutton
PCCC would be appointing a third lay member.
Siân Hopkinson (Associate Director of Primary Care) presented the slides available in the
agenda pack. The presentation covered the engagement activities from stakeholder groups,
the drivers for change behind the the Primary Care Strategy (PCS), and the top four
priorities of the strategy which were:

3

Agenda Item 2

Page 6

Scrutiny Committee
8 February 2017
 Sustainability
 Healthy Communities
 New Ways of Working
 Improved Access and Experience
The strategy was not yet signed-off , with work underway on an implementation plan , this is
scheduled to go to the Governing Board meeting in March for final agreement.
Paul Sarfaty clarified that MDT (referred to on page 52) stood for multi-disciplinary teams.
Following a comment from Councillor Ali, Siân Hopkinson confirmed that the PCS was
similar to the Sustainability and Transformation Plan (STP) because part of the strategy was
based around how to deliver the goals of the STP; the 17 London specifications for primary
care and the GP forward-view following on from the 5 year forward-view, to consider how to
deliver the vision and the transferral of funding into primary care.
Councillor Burstow asked how people would be encouraged to visit pharmacists before GPs
and Siân Hopkinson confirmed that publicising was part of the strategy via the
Communications team, and following national guidelines.
Following concerns raised by Councillor Emmerson, Paul Sarfaty responded that finding
premises in Worcester Park was an issue and that they were investigating the Worcester
Park Arms site for both Sutton and Kingston residents. He informed the committee that the
North Cheam area was also on the radar as lacking premises and that they believed that it
would be effective to focus on forming a large practice on Robin Hood Lane. Siân
Hopkinson commented that the CCG sees Community Pharmacy as a necessary part of the
health community however that responsibility for it fell to NHS England.
Councillor Williams asked how the CCG envisaged changing people’s behaviour towards
using the provisions and technology encouraged in the PCS. Paul Sarfaty admitted that
there was a cohort of very elderly people that would not be easily reached however that
increased confidence in using technology should develop naturally as the generation that
are entering the later stages of life now are much more IT-savvy. Siân Hopkinson responded
that the idea was to provide people with options rather than preventing them from phoning
or asking to be seen in a surgery. She informed the Committee that they had been running a
series of programmes in order to educate patients about their medical conditions and
equipment, and carers about the conditions of those they care for, which provided an
opportunity to inform people about changes to healthcare and the related technology.

28.

SUSTAINABILITY AND TRANSFORMATION PLAN

Councillor Ali reported that following the South West London Joint Health Overview and
Scrutiny Committee (SWL JHOSC), which was held on 18 January and included Councillors
representing 6 boroughs, it was unclear on the aims of the STP and how the South West
London CCG intended to engage with residents. Councillors at the SWL JHOSC were able
to question the Clinicians and Communications associates taking the lead and confirmed
that they hoped to publish the Plan for formal consultation in Autumn.
Councillor Ali informed the Committee that she had attended one of a number of events
planned to discuss the STP in Sutton on 1 February 2017, where there were 6 discussion
tables. She was disappointed that the advertisement of the event had not been forthcoming
and that although attendees had to register on Eventbrite, it was undersubscribed and
amongst those that did attend there was little diversity and a lot of familiar faces. She
confirmed that she would feed back to their Communications lead and hoped to see
improved engagement with residents and communities that ought to be consulted.

4

Page 7

Agenda Item 2

Scrutiny Committee
8 February 2017
David Williams added that the Chair of the South West London CCG opened the meeting by
emphasising that nothing had been decided and was at the very beginning of consultation
and as such it was unclear how they intended to reach a finalised Plan to consult on by
autumn. David Williams believed that there needed to be adequate structure in place
outside of hospitals before the plans to close hospitals could be acted on.
Councillor Ali confirmed that the progress of the STP would be brought back to future
meetings of the Committee.

29.

ANY URGENT BUSINESS
Chair's Q&A - Appendix to the minutes

The meeting ended at 9.29 pm
Chair:
Date:

5

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 9

Agenda Item 5

Supported by

Inpatient Care Report
(St Helier & Epsom Hospitals)

January 2017
Full Report
Granfers Community Centre, 73-79 Oakhill Road, Sutton, SM1 3AA
020 8641 9540 | info@healthwatchsutton.org.uk

Agenda Item 5

Page 10

2

Page 11

Agenda Item 5

Contents

Executive summary ................................................................................... 4
Inpatient Care Report ................................................................................ 6
Prioritisation ........................................................................................ 6
Remit................................................................................................. 6
Objectives ........................................................................................... 6
Proposed Methodology ............................................................................ 7
Implementation and Variation ................................................................... 8
Analysis .............................................................................................. 9
Patient Survey Analysis by Question ............................................................ 11
Areas for Commendation .......................................................................... 33
Key Findings & Recommendations ............................................................... 34
Other Potential Areas for Action................................................................. 34
Next Steps ........................................................................................... 35
Acknowledgements ................................................................................. 36

All appendices are available on request and are on the website
www.healthwatchsutton.org.uk

3

Agenda Item 5

Page 12

Executive summary
Background
Local people told us that inpatient care was their third highest priority in relation to
health and social care. In order to investigate this priority, we developed a project to
find out what is working well in inpatient care and where improvements could be made.
Methodology
We set up an Inpatient Project Group and put forward a proposal that our volunteers and
staff would visit 6 wards from a variety of specialities at St Helier and a further 2 wards
providing elective orthopaedic surgery at Epsom Hospitals to speak directly to patients.
We developed a questionnaire for patients that focused on food, availability of nurses,
quality of nursing care, quality of doctors’ care, receiving help and noise at night. We
also developed a Carer’s Survey and an Observation Sheet to broaden our insight.
Implementation
A series of visits were co-ordinated over a period of 5 weeks during June and July 2016.
In total 173 Patient surveys, 6 Carer Surveys and 21 Observation Sheets were completed.
The quantitative and qualitative data collected from these sources has been analysed to
establish the key findings and recommendations.
Areas for Commendation
1. OVERALL - Average rating of the ‘overall experience’ of staying on the ward, across
all participating wards is 8 out of 10. COMMENDATION – High score for the overall
experience on the wards.
2. TRUST IN NURSES - 89% of patients advised that they ‘Agreed’ or ‘Strongly Agreed’
that they trusted the nurses on the ward that they were staying on. –
COMMENDATION – High level of trust in nurses
3. TRUST IN DOCTORS - 91% of patient advised that they ‘Agreed’ or ‘Strongly Agreed’
that they trusted the doctors on the ward that they were staying on. –
COMMENDATION – High level of trust in doctors
4. OTHER STAFF - Analysis of comments relating to ‘other staff’ show that these were
overwhelmingly positive (only 8 negative from 135 comments) . COMMENDATION –
Positive feedback about Physiotherapists, Phlebotomists, Pharmacists,
Occupational Therapists, Radiologists etc.
5. WARD CLEANLINESS – Staff and volunteers visiting wards noted an overall high level
of cleanliness and this is also reflected in patient comments
COMMENDATION – High level of cleanliness
Key Findings & Recommendations
1. GENERAL - All wards have received a variety of qualitative and quantitative data
about their wards. We have produced individual ward-based reports for each of the
8 participating wards. RECOMMENDATION - Individual wards respond to these
reports with any action that they will take in response to their ward report
(especially looking at Q7, Q9,Q12) individual ward reports appendices A-H.
2. NOISE AT NIGHT - Just less than half of all patients surveyed said that they had
been bothered by noise at night on the ward. The main source of noise was other

4

Page 13

Agenda Item 5

patients. Equipment, staff and bins/doors were also cited as other sources of noise.
A fifth of patients have been bothered by light. RECOMMENDATION – Investigate
effective ways of alleviating both noise and light issues on wards that impact on
patient’s rest/sleep.
3. SUFFICIENT NURSES - 1 in 10 patients said that they felt that there were not enough
nurses on a weekday, rising to 1 in 5 patients when asked the same question about
nursing staff levels at the weekend. Having insufficient nurses was felt a lot more
strongly at St Helier hospital. There is significant variation in responses from
different wards at St Helier hospital. RECOMMENDATION - St Helier wards to look
at any real/perceived deficit in nurse staffing levels to reassure patients (this
could be achieved as part of Recommendation 1 above).
4. OTHER – There is a significant amount of analysis that has not been used to make
recommendations in this report. RECOMMENDATION -To look at all the remaining
analysis to see if there are any other areas where potential improvements can be
made.
Other Potential Areas for Action
1. FOOD - Overall the variety and quality of food was rated favourably. However, the
comments show that taste/consistency, organization/correct orders and choice are
all areas where improvement could be made. RECOMMENDATION - that the full
data is shared with Mitie and that Mitie respond with any action/feedback in
relation to the food provided to patients.
2. NURSES COMMUNICATION - The comments about nurses showed that patients were
concerned about the standard of English spoken by some staff. RECOMMENDATION –
Investigate potential ways to improve English communication between nurses
and patients
3. PATIENT DIGNITY – 14% of patients stated that they agreed that nurses spoke in
front of them as if they were not there. RECOMMENDATION – Look at ways to
reduce these incidents potentially through awareness/training.
4. TV – Even though we didn’t ask any question about TV or entertainment, we
received a number of complaints about the cost and availability of entertainment.
RECOMMENDATION – Assess any ways to reduce the cost of TV for patients and
cover areas where TV is not available.
Next Steps
This report has been formally submitted to the Chief Executive of Epsom and St Helier
University Hospitals NHS Trust. The covering letter asks the Trust to look at our findings
and provide a response outlining any actions or further research that will be carried out
by the Trust in response to the report. We have offered to provide any practical support
that may help the Trust to address any issues raised. We would also like to highlight the
areas of commendation in this report to the Trust to be shared with relevant
staff/management.

5

Agenda Item 5

Page 14

Inpatient Care Report
Prioritisation

In order to enable Healthwatch Sutton to understand the priorities of local people, we
launched a simple 2 question survey in 2015 called ‘What matters to you?’ This is a
feedback system designed as an on-going process that not only allows us the respond to
new issues as they arise but also enables us regularly analyse all the recent feedback
received so that we can plan our work programme.

In May 2015, a paper outlining a proposal for the work plan was agreed by the Board.
This paper agreed that the staff and volunteers would take forward a project to look at
the experience of inpatients. Inpatient care was the 3rd highest priority identified by
local people. GP access and outpatient care were identified as 1st and 2nd priorities and
both have already been investigated by Healthwatch Sutton.
The qualitative feedback that we had received as part of the ‘What matters to you?’
responses showed that the following areas had been identified by respondents as areas
of concern:
 Staffing levels at weekends
 Bank nursing staff and having sufficient nursing staff
 Food
 Noise at night

Remit

The aim of this project is to use the feedback already received from local people as the
basis of a more in-depth investigation looking at inpatient care. This project intends to
produce the most robust, transparent, evidence-based report possible within the limited
resources available by making use of partnerships, volunteers and skills within the staff
team.

Objectives

1. To identify local organisations that would be stakeholders in this project.
2. To develop of set of questions that will help identify the areas where
improvement may be needed in inpatient care.
3. To find a suitable/practical method of collection of responses to these questions.
4. To collect a body of evidence, comprised of the views and experiences of local
people that will stand up to scrutiny.
5. To analyse response data and identify themes and/or areas for
improvement/areas that are working well.
6. To produce a report with a series of recommendations
7. To follow up on the completion of actions developed in response to the
recommendations

6

Page 15

Agenda Item 5

Proposed Methodology

A variety of methods were considered for this project that included surveys, focus
groups and telephone interviews (used previously for the Hospital Discharge Project).
Issues around data protection, availability of patients after they had returned home and
the potential small size of a focus group, lead to the proposal to carry out surveys
directly with patients on wards. The Healthwatch Sutton volunteers had previously
expressed an interest in supporting this project through visits to inpatients wards.
Prior to the Board’s agreement of this project, Healthwatch Sutton had already
discussed the potential to work with Healthwatch Merton on any projects that related to
St Helier hospital as both boroughs’ residents use the services that are provided there.
Healthwatch Merton had recently trained 10 volunteers for ‘enter and view’ activities. It
was agreed that volunteers from both Healthwatch organisations would work together to
collect survey responses.
Healthwatch Sutton has established a process that it follows for its projects. In order to
ensure transparency and accountability, Healthwatch Sutton advertises for local people
to put themselves forward to be part of the Project Group, in this instance, the
Inpatient Project Group. A Project Brief document is created at this stage to share with
the Group and other stakeholders. The proposed methodology is taken to this Group at
the beginning of the project to ensure that we are asking the right questions and to
confirm that the method we plan to use to collection people’s views is appropriate.
If a provider/commissioner is directly involved in the project then discussion and
agreement are made in advance. In this case, we liaised with key staff at Epsom and St
Helier University Hospitals NHS Trust to confirm that the use of volunteers would be
appropriate, check any potential issues relating to visiting wards and to verify that the
questions will make sense to patients. We also ensure that all volunteers are well
briefed prior to their first visit to the hospital.
The process runs as follows:
1. Issue for investigation is identified.
2. Project Brief document is developed.
3. Methodology and questions are created (if appropriate).
4. Methodology and questions are checked with provider organisation.
5. Participation in the project group is advertised through our communication
channels.
6. Project Group is created and initial meeting held to check methodology and
questions.
7. Volunteers Project Briefing is held (if appropriate).
8. Data collection activity is carried out.
9. Data analysed, recommendations developed and report produced.
10. Report checked by provider for factual accuracy.
11. Project Group reconvened to agree and sign off report.
12. Healthwatch Board agreement for publication.
13. Covering letter and report sent to most appropriate representative of the
organisation able to respond to the recommendations.
14. Report published and sent to key stakeholders.
15. Actions taken in response to recommendations monitored (with support from
Healthwatch if available/appropriate).

7

Agenda Item 5

Page 16

Implementation and Variation

Initial discussions were held to decide which inpatient areas should be covered. Sutton
Clinical Commissioning Group helped us to identify the inpatient services that were most
commonly attended by Sutton residents. We established that the majority of
attendances took place at St Helier hospital with some planned operations taking place
at Epsom hospital (South West London Elective Orthopaedic Centre (SWLEOC) only). For
Merton residents the situation was slightly different with people who lived in the south
of the Borough likely to attend St Helier hospital and those in the north more likely to
attend St George’s hospital in Tooting. To further complicate the situation, many
residents of both Sutton and Merton would attend other local specialist units if they
happened to be admitted due to a special condition. These could be in a variety of
London hospitals.
For ease of delivery of this project, it was decided that only wards at St Helier hospital
and the SWLEOC would be visited. Healthwatch worked with Epsom and St Helier
University Hospitals NHS Trust to identify 8 wards that would cover a variety of areas of
acute care. It was agreed that we would attend the following:
 AMU - St Helier
 A3 – St Helier
 B5 – St Helier
 C3 – St Helier
 C5 – St Helier
 C6 – St Helier
 Derby – SWLEOC
 Oaks - SWLEOC
In order to be able to compare wards, the visiting teams were looking to find a minimum
of 20 respondents for each ward.
A Project Brief document was created that outlined the case for the investigation.
Nine people met to be part of the Inpatient Project Group. They met held a meeting on
9 March 2016. The members gave feedback on the plans and agreed to sign off the
project so that the main data collection activities could commence.
A set of survey questions was developed and some minor amendments that were
implemented as a result of feedback from the Inpatient Project Group member,
Healthwatch volunteers and staff from Epsom and St Helier University Hospitals NHS
Trust. You can see the full survey in Appendix 12
If tried and tested questions that had been used in the National Inpatient Survey were
available, then these were used. Every effort was made to minimise the number of
questions to ensure patients were more likely to be happy to complete the full survey.
Volunteers would complete the survey with the patient unless the patient wished to
complete it by themselves. The final survey comprised of 20 questions. Some contained
comments boxes to allow respondents to give more information about their response.
We also collected age, gender and disability data.
All respondents were offered the opportunity to receive a copy of this report after it has
been published. In total 72 respondents requested a copy.

8

Page 17

Agenda Item 5

In addition to the patient survey, both the hospitals’ Trust and the Project Group felt
that a separate survey should be developed to be completed by the carers, families or
friends of patients who are staying on the wards. This was felt to be particularly
important on those wards that had a large percentage of patients who may have
difficulty in completing the survey themselves even with assistance from volunteers;
e.g. stroke ward and people with dementia. A slightly amended version of the original
survey was developed that was more appropriate for carers, families or friends to
complete. You can see this survey in Appendix 11.
In order to capture observations of both ward environment and staff interactions with
each other and patients, Healthwatch staff accompanying the volunteers agreed to
complete an ‘Observation Sheet’ that had been created by Healthwatch Merton. In
total, 21 Observation Sheets were completed.
A series of visits to both hospital sites were arranged from 13 June to 15 July 2016.
Patients completed 173 surveys and carers, families or friends completed a further 6
surveys.

Analysis
Calculating scores
For questions that have asked respondents to give a rating (i.e. 1-5 or 1-10), the scores
have been kept using the same scale and an average has been calculated.
In order to make it possible to compare responses to non-numeral questions (i.e.
‘agree’/’disagree’) the following scoring system was developed to give a single score for
a scaled text-response question.
For each of the following response types in the tables below a weighting is given
between 1 and 0 depending on the positivity of the response. All responses that show
that the respondent does not give an opinion are removed from the equation. For
example a response of ‘Don’t know’ or ‘I have not received any treatment of procedure’
would be removed.
Questions with responses ‘Yes, definitely’, ‘Yes, to some extent’ and ‘No’
Weighting
Yes, definitely
1
Yes, to some extent
0.5
No
0
Questions with responses ‘Strongly disagree’, ‘Disagree’, ‘Undecided’, ‘Agree’,
‘Strongly agree’
Strongly disagree
Disagree
Undecided
Agree
Strongly agree

Weighting
0
0.25
0.5
0.75
1

9

Agenda Item 5

Page 18

Questions with responses ‘Yes’, ‘No’
%
1
0

Yes
No

To calculate the score for each site or ward, the responses are substituted with the
figures above and then an average is calculated. These are then converted in to a score
out of 100 (0-100) by multiplying the final figure by 100 and rounded to the nearest
whole number.
If a ‘yes’ or ‘agree’ response is a negative response, as shown in the questions below,
then the scoring shown above is reversed. A higher figure shown in the report denotes a
positive outcome for the patient.
Q: Nurses speak in front of me as if I’m not there – Strongly disagree – Strongly Agree
Q: Have you been bothered by noise at night? – Yes, No
Response Numbers
Patients’ Survey
The number of surveys completed per ward is shown in the table below.
Ward
AMU
A3
B5
C3
C5
C6
Derby
Oaks

Total
34
25
24
18
16
23
17
16

The turnover of patients on the AMU ward made it easier to collect a larger number of
responses. On other wards, where patient turnover was lower and the patients were less
well, response rates are lower. On 4 wards, we were unable to reach the target of 20
responses. We have produced ward-level reports, (appendices A-H) however, we would
advise that caution should be taken in the figures given for these wards with less than 20
responses, as the low response rate could have an effect on the accuracy of these
figures due to the potential variance.

10

Page 19

Agenda Item 5

Patient Survey Analysis by Question
About your stay
Q1.

Was this stay in hospital planned in advance or an emergency?
Was this stay in hospital planned in advance or an
emergency?
128
140
120
100
80

39

60
40

5

20
0
Emergency or
urgent

Waiting list or
planning in advance

Something else

From the 140 responses received for St Helier hospital, nearly all admissions were
‘Emergency or urgent’ with only 8 admissions from a ‘Waiting list or planned in advance’
and a further 5 ‘Something else’ (e.g. admitted from the Outpatient Department). Nonemergency admissions therefore make up only 9% of admissions.
Conversely and unsurprisingly, only 2 of the 33 admissions (6%) of admissions at SWLEOC
were unplanned ‘Emergency of urgent’.
Q2. Before you have received procedures and/or treatments, do you feel that they
have been explained clearly to you?
Before you have received procedures and/or
treatments, do you feel that they have been explained
clearly to you?
29
30
25
20
15
10
5
0

2

Yes, definitely

Yes, to some
extent

0

No

11

Page 20

Agenda Item 5

Only those patients who were a planned admission were asked this question and as such
there are insufficient responses to analyse for St Helier hospital. Of the 31 responses for
SWLEOC, 29 stated ‘Yes, definitely’ to this question with the remain 2 stating ‘Yes, to
some extent’ and no-one stating ‘No’.
Q3.

How many nights have you stayed on this ward?
How many nights have you stayed on this ward?
63

61

70
48

60
50
40
30
20
10
0
1-2 nights

3-7 nights

7 or more nights

The table for all responses shows that a similar number of patients stayed for 1-2, 3-7
and 7+ days. However, as you would expect, the lengths of stay at SWLEOC were, on
average, considerably shorter.
Length of
stay
1-2
3-7
7+

SWLEOC
Number
17
13
3

SWLEOC
Percentage
52%
39%
9%

St Helier
Number
31
50
58

St Helier
Percentage
22%
36%
42%

Over half the patients at SWLEOC had only been on the ward for 1-2 days at the point
that we spoke to them. Whereas more than three quarters of patients at St Helier had
been on the ward for more than 2 days.
For analysis of the changes in views for each question depending on the patient’s length
of stay please see the ‘Comparisons’ section on page 31

12

Page 21

Agenda Item 5

Food
Q4.

How would you rate the quality of the food? 1-5 (1=Poor – 5=Excellent)
How would you rate the quality of the food? 1-5 (1=Poor –
5=Excellent)
3.8
3.7
3.8
3.7

3.5

3.6
3.5
3.4
3.3
All

St Helier

SWLEOC

Patients were asked to rate the quality of the food. It was expected that there would be
very little variability in the responses as the food is provided in the same way by the
same provider. However, there are some small differences in food rating by hospital site
and by ward. C5 could be considered an outlier with a rating of 4.4 (only 16 responses).
Site/Ward
All
St Helier
SWLEOC
Derby
A3
C3
Oaks
AMU
C6
B5
C5

Rating (Average scale 1-5)
3.7
3.8
3.5
3.4
3.5
3.6
3.7
3.8
3.8
3.9
4.4

13

Page 22

Agenda Item 5

Q5.

How would you rate the variety of food? 1-5 (1=Poor – 5=Excellent)
How would you rate the variety of food? 1-5 (1=Poor –
5=Excellent)
4

4

4.02
3.99
3.96

3.9

3.93
3.9
3.87
3.84
All

St Helier

SWLEOC

As the same systems should be in place across all wards to enable patients to access the
same variety of food, it could expected that there would be some consistency in the
average responses, though personal perceptions of choice may influence patients’
answers to this question. The table below shows the average rating (1-5) for all, each
hospital site and individual wards.
Site/Ward
All
St Helier
SWLEOC
A3
C3
Derby
Oaks
C6
B5
AMU
C5

Rating (Average scale 1-5)
4.0
4.0
3.9
3.7
3.7
3.9
3.9
4.0
4.1
4.4
4.5

Patient’s rated the variety of food more highly that the quality.
Any other comments about the food?
Analysis of the 89 comments about the food received from all the wards, shows that the
following number of positive, negative and neutral comments were received.
Positive comments
Negative comments
Neutral comments

38
35
16

14

Page 23

Agenda Item 5

Of these comments both positive and negative (excluding Neutral) were separated in to
the following themes; general, temperature, choice, portion, presentation,
organisation/correct orders and taste/consistency. Some comments would cover a
variety of themes.
The following number of comments were received for both positive and negative
comments by theme.
Theme
General
Temperature
Choice
Portion
Presentation
Organisation/ Correct
orders
Taste/consistency

Positive Comments
18
8
8
8
8
4

Negative Comments
3
6
8
4
0
9

1

8

Looking at these figures the greatest disparity between positive and negative comments
(excluding general comments) relates to taste/consistency and organization/correct
orders. It should also be noted that whilst there was the same number of positive and
negative comments about choice, the number of negative comments was quite high
compared with other themes.

Not very good. Diabetic and
lack choice. No direction
and support about food
choice. Ward C6

They bring menus round every
day and you just tick off what
you want. They bring round cups
of tea and coffee all day long.
There's always something going
on. Oaks ward

Thoroughly enjoyed my
meals so far. Derby ward

The food is good, well
presented. Extra portion
available on request. AMU

To see the full comments and analysis see Appendix 8

15

Page 24

Agenda Item 5

Staff
Nurses
Q.6 In your opinion, are there enough nurses on duty to care for you in hospital at
the following times? (Calculated score 0-100, please see full explanation on page 9)
Weekdays (All wards)
In your opinion, are there enough nurses on duty to care
for you in hospital on weekdays?
95.3
72.2

100

66.7

80
60
40
20
0
All

Response
Yes, definitely
Yes, to some extent
No
Total

St Helier

No. of responses
94
53
20
167

SWLEOC

Percentage
56%
32%
12%
100%

Weekday Evenings
In your opinion, are there enough nurses on duty to
care for you in hospital on weekday evenings?
88.3
100

66.1

60.7

80
60
40
20
0
All

St Helier

SWLEOC

16

Page 25
Response
Yes, definitely
Yes, to some extent
No
Total

No. of responses
77
49
27
153

Agenda Item 5

Percentage
50%
32%
18%
100%

Weekends
In your opinion, are there enough nurses on duty to
care for you in hospital at the weekend?
88.5
100

60.8

57.3

80
60
40
20
0
All

Response
Yes, definitely
Yes, to some extent
No
Total

St Helier

No. of responses
51
41
25
117

SWLEOC

Percentage
44%
35%
21%
100%

The figures show that on average approximately, 1 in 10 patients staying at SWLEOC feel
that there are not enough nurses on duty across all the different times given in the
questions. The weekend figure for SWLEOC has been given by a smaller number of
patients as very few have stayed in the wards at the weekend.
The view that there are not enough nurses is felt more strongly by patients staying on
the wards at St Helier hospital and more patients felt that there were not enough nurses
in the evenings and even more acutely at the weekend. (Calculated score 0-100, please
see full explanation on page 9)
Time
Weekdays
Weekday Evenings
Weekends

All
72.2
66.1
60.8

St Helier
66.7
60.7
57.3

SWLEOC
95.3
88.3
88.5

It should also be noted that, there is quite a significant variability in the figures for each
ward (St Helier only) as the table below shows.

17

Page 26

Agenda Item 5

Time
Weekdays
Weekday Evenings
Weekends

Lowest Score
47.6
42.5
43.3

Highest Score
81.8
75.9
75.0

Comments
Across all wards, the comments showed a mix of positive, negative and neutral
statements. The total number of comments were as follows:
Positive comments
Negative comments
Neutral comments

40
14
42

The comments show that patients are often very sympathetic to the demands that are
placed on the nursing staff, however they feel that more nursing staff are needed, in
particular in the evening and at the weekend. There are also a number of comments
relating to the English language skills of some nursing staff. In a couple of more extreme
cases, delays in response to a call for help have led to discomfort and loss of dignity for
the patient.

Not been here at weekend.
Sometimes have to ring bell again
and again to call someone for help.
Ward A3

During the day nurses are
great but service is not
the same at night.
Ward C6

Night staff not so good,
very hostile, do not
listen. Ward B5

Never had a problem.
Ward A3

To see the full comments and analysis see Appendix 9

18

Page 27

Agenda Item 5

Q7. Please state how much you agree or disagree with the following statements
about the nurses on this ward: (Calculated score 0-100, please see full explanation on
page 9)
I trust the nurses on this ward
I trust the nurses on this ward
88
88
86

83

82

84
82
80
78
All

Response
Strongly Disagree
Disagree
Undecided
Agree
Strongly Agree
Total

St Helier

SWLEOC

No. of responses
1
4
13
71
77
166

Percentage
0.6%
2.4%
7.8%
42.8%
46.4%
100%

Nearly 90% of patients advised that they ‘Agreed’ or ‘Strongly Agreed’ that they trusted
the nurses on the ward that they were staying on.
Nurses have explained things clearly to me
Nurses have explained things clearly to me
85
86
84
78

82

77

80
78
76
74
72
All

St Helier

SWLEOC

19

Page 28

Agenda Item 5

Response
Strongly Disagree
Disagree
Undecided
Agree
Strongly Agree
Total

No. of responses
1
15
13
69
67
165

Percentage
1%
9%
8%
42%
41%
101% (rounding)

Nurses listen to me
Nurses listen to me
86

86
84

78

82

76

80
78
76
74
72
70
All

Response
Strongly Disagree
Disagree
Undecided
Agree
Strongly Agree
Total

St Helier

SWLEOC

No. of responses
2
15
13
68
67
165

Percentage
1%
9%
8%
42%
41%
101% (rounding)

Nurses speak in front of me as if I’m not there
Nurses speak in front of me as if I’m not there
90
76

73

90
80
70
60
50
40
30
20
10
0
All

St Helier

SWLEOC

20

Page 29
Response
Strongly Disagree
Disagree
Undecided
Agree
Strongly Agree
Total

No. of responses
71
55
15
19
3
163

Agenda Item 5

Percentage
44%
34%
9%
12%
2%
101% (rounding)

Please note that the responses shown in the chart above have been reversed for this
question. A high number denotes a higher level of satisfaction.
The responses to the 4 rating questions about nurses above are on the whole positive.
The possible exception is ‘Nurses speak in front of me as if I’m not there’. A minority
14% agreed with this statement with a further 9% ‘Undecided’. Leaving 4 out of 5
patients stating that nurses did not speak in front of them as if they were not there.
Q8.

Any other comments about nurses?

In total, 78 comments were received about nurses. Theming the comments in to
positive, negative and neutral showed the following total number of comments:
Positive comments
34
Negative comments
37
Neutral comments
7
Key themes that emerge from the comments are:
Positive
 Helpful
 Friendly
 Attentive
 Good service
Negative
 Language barrier
 Nursing quality varies (some patients stated differed dependent on shifts)
 Slow response/not attentive
Not enough time for
listening. Medication
missed on occasion.
Ward C5

Nurses listen to me - if enough time.
Nurses earn their money. The jobs
they have to do. Ward C5

Happy with service and
attitude. Personally, try
their best. Ward C6

They listen to me, I
listen to them, we share,
we laugh!. Ward C6

To see the full comments and analysis see Appendix 5

21

Page 30

Agenda Item 5

Doctors
Q.9 Please state how much you agree or disagree with the following statements
about the doctors on this ward: (Calculated score 0-100, please see full explanation on
page 9)
I trust the doctors on this ward
I trust the doctors on this ward
87
87
86
85
84
83
82
81
80
79
78

82
81

All

Response
Strongly Disagree
Disagree
Undecided
Agree
Strongly Agree
Total

St Helier

SWLEOC

No. of responses
4
0
10
78
66
158

Percentage
3%
0%
6%
49%
42%
100%

Doctors have explained things clearly to me
Doctors have explained things clearly to me
86
86
84
79

82

77

80
78
76
74
72
All

St Helier

SWLEOC

22

Page 31
Response
Strongly Disagree
Disagree
Undecided
Agree
Strongly Agree
Total

Agenda Item 5

No. of responses
5
10
6
73
66
160

Percentage
3%
6%
4%
46%
41%
100%

Doctors listen to me
Doctors listen to me
85
86
84
79

82

77

80
78
76
74
72
All

Response
Strongly Disagree
Disagree
Undecided
Agree
Strongly Agree
Total

St Helier

No. of responses
5
4
10
81
56
156

SWLEOC

Percentage
3%
3%
6%
52%
36%
100%

23

Agenda Item 5

Page 32

Q10. Any other comments about doctors?
In total, 64 comments were received about doctors. Theming the comments in to
positive, negative and neutral showed the following total number of comments:
Positive comments
32
Negative comments
16
Neutral comments
16
Key themes that emerge from the comments are:
Positive
 Good explanations
 Very good
 Listened
Negative
 Poor explanation
 Didn’t listen

Level of communication
between doctors was varied.
Weekends a problem.
Ward C6

They are excellent.
I really feel safe
with them.
Ward C5

I trust them and they do try.
Could explain more. They do
listen but not sure if act on it.
Ward A3

Doctors and specialist are brilliant.
Ward B5

To see the full comments and analysis see Appendix 10

24

Page 33

Agenda Item 5

Q11. Any other comments about other staff? (For example, occupational therapists,
physiotherapists, phlebotomists, etc.)
In total, patients made 135 comments about other staff. Many stated generally that they
felt that they were all good. They made the following number of positive, negative or
neutral comments:
Positive comments
Negative comments
Neutral comments

101
8
26

The following healthcare professionals were mentioned specifically in the comments:
 Physiotherapist(41 comments – 37 positive, 4 negative)
 Phlebotomist (19 comments – 18 positive, 1 neutral)
 Pharmacist(3 comments – 2 positive, 1 neutral)
 Occupational Therapist- (2 comments – 2 positive)
 Radiologist(4 comments – 4 positive)
 Dietician(1 comment – 1 neutral)
The comments about other staff are overwhelmingly positive.

Physios and Phlebotomists have
been very kind and supportive.

The man who took blood test
was very nice.

X-ray staff excellent

To see the full comments and analysis see Appendix 2

25

Page 34

Agenda Item 5

Q12. Did you receive all the help that you needed on this ward? (for example; to
eat your meals, go to the toilet or respond to your call bell etc.) (Calculated score 0100, please see full explanation on page 9)
Did you receive all the help that you needed on this ward?
92
92
91
90
89
88
87
86
85
84
83
82
81

87

All

85

St Helier

SWLEOC

There were 168 responses to this question, however, 20 responses stated that the
patient did not need any help. The remaining responses were as follows:
Response
Yes, definitely
Yes, to some extent
No
Total

No. of responses
114
28
6
148

Percentage
77%
19%
4%
100%

The table for the responses to this question, show that only a small percentage (4% of
people felt that they ‘did not receive the help they needed’. A further 19% stated ‘to
some extent’ showing that these patients did not feel that they consistently received
the help they needed.

26

Page 35

Agenda Item 5

Q13. Comments – Receiving help
The number of comments received about ‘receiving help was relatively small (43) in
comparison to other questions. Of the 9 comments received about the wards at SWLEOC,
only 1 was negative. The negative comments show that delays in receiving help in some
more extreme cases have led to discomfort and loss of dignity for patients. Please see
individual ward reports for full comments. Total number of comments received:
Positive comments
21
Negative comments
13
Neutral comments
9

If they are in good mood then
they come and help otherwise
not. Ward B5

Just ring the bell.
Help is always
available.
Oaks Ward

To see the full comments and analysis see Appendix 1
Q14. Have you been bothered by noise at night?
Response
Yes
No
Total

No. of responses
80
88
168

Percentage
48%
52%
100%

Approximately 50% of patients have been bothered by noise at night. All wards show that
they have received a similar number of ‘yes’ and ‘no’ responses apart from Oaks that
had only had three times the number of ‘no’ responses compared with ‘yes’ responses
(from a small no. of responses).
Q15. Which of the following noises have bothered you? (please select all that apply)
Response
Other patients
Equipment (monitors etc.)
Staff
Bins/Doors
Call bells
Other
Visitors
Total

No. of responses
60
25
21
16
8
7
2
139

Percentage
43%
18%
15%
12%
6%
5%
1%
100%

27

Agenda Item 5

Page 36

‘Other patients’ were the largest sources of noise that bothered patients. At 43% of all
responses this category was more than double the next highest ‘Equipment’ (18%);
closely followed by ‘Staff and ‘Bins/doors’.
Q16. Have you been bothered by light on the ward?
Response
Yes
No
Total

No. of responses
34
133
167

Percentage
20%
80%
100%

One in five patients have been bothered by light on the ward. This is significantly less
than the percentage of patients that have been bothered by noise.
Q17. Have you been given the opportunity to give feedback or raise concerns about
the care you have been receiving on this ward?
In total, 150 patients responded to this questions, however, 35 stated that they ‘did not
want to give feedback or raise concerns’. The remaining 115 responses were as follows:
Response
Yes, definitely
Yes, to some extent
No
Total

No. of responses
38
21
56
115

Percentage
33%
18%
49%
100%

Q18. Comments
The comments section has been used by patients to share a variety of positive and
negative feedback based around a wide variety of themes. Several stated that they felt
that they had not been in the hospital long enough and expected to give feedback when
they leave.
To see the full comments see Appendix 4

28

Page 37

Agenda Item 5

Q19. Please rate your overall experience of staying on this ward
(1=Poor – 10=Excellent)
Please rate your overall experience of staying on this ward
(1=Poor – 10=Excellent)
8.0

9.0

7.7

10.0
8.0
6.0
4.0
2.0
0.0
All

St Helier

SWLEOC

Ratings for each ward are fairly consistent. For St Helier hospital, the highest rated ward
achieved a score of 8.3 and the lowest scored 7.1 with no distinctive outliers. For the
two wards at Epsom the highest achieved a score of 9.3 and the lowest 8.7.
Q.20 Any other comments about your stay in hospital?
In total, 75 comments were received about the patient’s stay in general. Comment
totals:
Positive comments
40
Negative comments
22
Neutral comments
13
The comments have been separated in to the following themes with the total number of
comments for each theme shown in the table below (from highest to lowest).
Response
Care/ Staff
General
Clean
Ambience
Discharge
TV/ Entertainment
Environment
Facilities/ Equipment
Information
Total

No. of comments
(positive, negative,
neutral)
26
(19+, 5-, 2)
18
(16+,1-, 1)
7
(5+, 1-, 1)
6
(5+, 1-, 0,
6
(0+, 6-, 0)
6
(0+, 6-, 0)
5
(1+, 2-, 2)
4
(2+, 2-, 0)
2
(1+, 1-, 0)
80
(49+, 25-, 6)

Percentage
33%
23%
9%
8%
8%
8%
6%
5%
3%
103% (rounding)

29

Agenda Item 5

Page 38

In proportion to the total number of responses received discharge and TV/entertainment
both received 100% negative comments (and the highest number of negative comments
in a theme). The reasons for discharge issues varied. All the comments relating to TV/
Entertainment all related to the following 2 categories:
 Dissatisfaction was availability of TV/Entertainment (i.e. none available).
 Dissatisfaction with the charges for TV service.
When it rains it comes through
the windows as they don't close
properly. The water doesn't
seem very hot.

This form should be
available to all patients,
not just based on a
chance encounter

Even though its unpleasant to be unwell, its been pleasant to be
in here. Its nice to be looked after by nice happy people. We
always have a joke. I used to be really scared of the idea of being
in hospital but now that I've been in here I can see it's alright.

To see the full comments and analysis see Appendix 3

Individual ward reports
So that individual wards are able to respond to the feedback for their ward we have
produced individual ward reports (appendices A-H).

30

Page 39

Agenda Item 5

Comparisons
We have used the data to compare the experience of different groups of patients to see
if there is any variation.
Gender
There was very little variation in the average responses for men and women in relation
to the questions asked in the survey.
The biggest variation at only 4 points out of 100 was that women felt slightly less
favourably about the doctors in response to the following questions.



I trust the doctors on this ward
Doctors have explained things clearly to me

To see the full analysis see Appendix 7
Age
There are only
 3 18-24 year old respondents
 2 25-34 year old respondents
 6 35-44 year old respondents
 4 95+ year old respondents
For this reason these age ranges were removed from the age range comparisons. The
table below shows now the overall rating (1-10) varied for different age ranges.
Age
Range
45-54
55-64
65-74
75-84
85-94

Please rate your overall experience of staying on this
ward. (1=Poor – 10=Excellent)
7.92
8.00
7.45
7.20
8.33

Length of Stay
A comparison has also been made of patients’ responses to the questions dependent on
their length of stay (St Helier only as SWLEOC stays are nearly all short). For many of the
questions there were no discernible trends in their views. However, the following
observations can be taken from the analysis:
 Patients’ views regarding the quality of the food show that their rating improved
the longer they have been staying on the ward (surprising)
 Patients’ perception that there are enough nurses across all the shifts declines
the longer that the patient has been staying on the ward. This could be
considered unsurprising as many whole have stayed shorter periods may not have
experienced weekend shifts, however, all patients who complete the survey had
stayed at least one night and they could chose ‘Don’t know’ if they have not
experienced weekend nursing. There may be other factors that impact on this
result; for example as patients recover, their awareness and prioritisation of
nursing may change.

31

Agenda Item 5






Page 40

Patients views regarding the following statements also decline the longer they
have stayed:
o Nurses have explained things clearly to me
o Nurses listen to me
o Doctors have explained things clearly to me
o Did you receive all the help that you needed on this ward?
The number of people saying that they have been bothered by noise at night
decreases the longer they have stayed on the ward
There is a slight decrease in patients’ overall rating of their experience the longer
they stay on the ward (scale 1-10) from 8.0 to 7.6.

To see the full analysis see Appendix 6

Carer’s Survey
The number of responses received for the carer’s survey (6) is too low to use to produce
any statistical data. Volunteers found it difficult to find sufficient
carers/family/relatives to complete this survey. This may have been due to the times
that we visited the ward and/or volunteers finding it more uncomfortable to approach
patients who have a visitor. The responses were received from a variety of wards.
The following comments show some compliments/issues.
Doctors/Communication
Communication between doctor and relative is variable.
Problem is do not always see a doctor. Especially at visiting times.
More communication between doctor/relatives/patients.
Nursing
Brilliant, helpful nursing staff
Staff low in the evenings.
Nursing Assistants not qualified enough. More qualified Assistants required.
Good but lack of staff
Better if more staff available.
Noise at night
Noisy at night from other patients.

32

Page 41

Agenda Item 5

Observation Sheets
On most visits Observation Sheets were completed for each ward visited. The sheets
commented on the following:
 Entrance/reception
 Décor
 Tidiness
 Lighting
 Odour
 Cleanliness
 Noise level
 Information displayed
 Staffing level
 Safety
 Temperature
 Staff interactions
In total, 21 Observation Sheets were completed and there was at least one for each
ward. There were no clear themes that emerged from this data. As such, an Observation
Sheet combining all the observations for each ward has been compiled. This has been
added to each ward’s individual reports (appendices A-H) so that they can pick out an
action that they may wish to take in response to the observations.
As part of this process, Healthwatch staff and volunteers had been asked to look out for
‘Nurse in charge’ badges being worn by nursing staff. We only found that they were
being worn on one ward on one occasion.

Areas for Commendation
1. OVERALL - Average rating of the ‘overall experience’ of staying on the ward, across
all participating wards is 8 out of 10. COMMENDATION – High score for the overall
experience on the wards.
2. TRUST IN NURSES - 89% of patients advised that they ‘Agreed’ or ‘Strongly Agreed’
that they trusted the nurses on the ward that they were staying on. –
COMMENDATION – High level of trust in nurses
3. TRUST IN DOCTORS - 91% of patient advised that they ‘Agreed’ or ‘Strongly Agreed’
that they trusted the doctors on the ward that they were staying on. –
COMMENDATION – High level of trust in doctors
4. OTHER STAFF - Analysis of comments relating to ‘other staff’ show that these were
overwhelmingly positive (only 8 negative from 135 comments) . COMMENDATION –
Positive feedback about Physiotherapists, Phlebotomists, Pharmacists,
Occupational Therapists, Radiologists etc.
5. WARD CLEANLINESS – Staff and volunteers visiting wards noted an overall high level
of cleanliness and this is also reflected in patient comments

33

Agenda Item 5

Page 42

COMMENDATION – High level of cleanliness

Key Findings & Recommendations
It should be acknowledged that the wards involved in this study and the types of
patients on those wards, vary considerably. It may not necessarily always be a
straight-forward ward comparison. The types of patients, their level of need, age
and length of stay may vary considerably and may therefore impact on the patients’
views of the service.
1. GENERAL - All wards have received a variety of qualitative and quantitative data
about their wards. We have produced individual ward-based reports for each of the
8 participating wards. RECOMMENDATION - Individual wards respond to these
reports with any action that they will take in response to their ward report
(especially looking at Q7, Q9,Q12) individual ward reports appendices A-H.
2. NOISE AT NIGHT - Just less than half of all patients surveyed said that they had
been bothered by noise at night on the ward. The main source of noise was other
patients. Equipment, staff and bins/doors were also cited as other sources of noise.
A fifth of patients have been bothered by light. RECOMMENDATION – Investigate
effective ways of alleviating both noise and light issues on wards that impact on
patient’s rest/sleep.
3. SUFFICIENT NURSES - 1 in 10 patients said that they felt that there were not enough
nurses on a weekday, rising to 1 in 5 patients when asked the same question about
nursing staff levels at the weekend. Having insufficient nurses was felt a lot more
strongly at St Helier hospital. There is significant variation in responses from
different wards at St Helier hospital. RECOMMENDATION - St Helier wards to look
at any real/perceived deficit in nurse staffing levels to reassure patients (this
could be achieved as part of Recommendation 1 above).
4. OTHER – There is a significant amount of analysis that has not been used to make
recommendations in this report. RECOMMENDATION -To look at all the remaining
analysis to see if there are any other areas where potential improvements can be
made.

Other Potential Areas for Action
1. FOOD - Overall the variety and quality of food was rated favourably. However, the
comments show that taste/consistency, organization/correct orders and choice are
all areas where improvement could be made. RECOMMENDATION - that the full
data is shared with Mitie and that Mitie respond with any action/feedback in
relation to the food provided to patients.
2. NURSES COMMUNICATION - The comments about nurses showed that patients were
concerned about the standard of English spoken by some staff. RECOMMENDATION –
Investigate potential ways to improve English communication between nurses
and patients

34

Page 43

Agenda Item 5

3. PATIENT DIGNITY – 14% of patients stated that they agreed that nurses spoke in
front of them as if they were not there. RECOMMENDATION – Look at ways to
reduce these incidents potentially through awareness/training.
4. TV – Even though we didn’t ask any question about TV or entertainment, we
received a number of complaints about the cost and availability of entertainment.
RECOMMENDATION – Assess any ways to reduce the cost of TV for patients and
cover areas where TV is not available.

Next Steps
This report has been submitted to Epsom and St Helier University Hospitals Trust
formally as a Healthwatch report. We ask the Trust to take on board the feedback that
we have received from patients across the 8 wards that participated in this project. We
would like to acknowledge that positive findings that are outlined in the ‘Areas for
commendation’ section. We would like key staff in the Trust to look at ‘Key findings and
recommendations’ and ‘Other potential areas for action’ sections of this report and
respond individually to each numbered recommendation.
Healthwatch will support the Trust in any practical way possible to help them to
maximise the improvements that come about as a result of this report.

35

Page 44

Agenda Item 5

Acknowledgements
A special thank you to all of the following people who have made this work possible:
All the staff on the following wards who supported us to carry out this project:
 AMU - St Helier
 A3 – St Helier
 B5 – St Helier
 C3 – St Helier
 C5 – St Helier
 C6 – St Helier
 Derby – SWLEOC
 Oaks - SWLEOC
Also thanks to the following staff at Epsom and St Helier University Hospitals NHS Trust
who were the key contacts and enablers of this project.
Lynn Godfrey-James – Head of Patient Experience
John Needham – Patient Experience Officer
Charlotte Hall – Chief Nurse
With special thanks to the following volunteers who were instrumental in the delivery of
this project by providing all the intelligence gathering required.
David Williams
Shri Mehrotra
Neena Mehrotra
Roy Bentley
Clare Nunns
Eileen Laidman
Isabelle Harding
Sally Sauvageot
Daphne Norman
Eileen Nutting
Nancy Adamson

-

Healthwatch Sutton
Healthwatch Sutton
Healthwatch Sutton
Healthwatch Sutton
Healthwatch Sutton
Healthwatch Sutton
Healthwatch Sutton
Healthwatch Sutton
Healthwatch Sutton
Healthwatch Merton
Healthwatch Merton

The Inpatient Project Group who put themselves forward to shape this project and
ensure that it is accountable to local people.
The staff team at Healthwatch Sutton and Healthwatch Merton (Pete Flavell, Operations
Manager, Erin Cowhig Croft, Information and Outreach Officer, Sara Thomas,
Communications and Administration Officer).
And, all patients and carers who gave up their time to complete our survey.

36

Page 45

Healthwatch Sutton
Granfers Community Centre
73-79 Oakhill Road
Sutton, Surrey, SM1 3AA
Company limited by guarantee no: 8171224
Registered charity no: 1151601
Tel:
Email:
Website:
Facebook:
Twitter:

020 8641 9540
info@healthwatchsutton.org.uk
www.healthwatchsutton.org.uk
www.facebook.com/healthwatchsutton
@HW_Sutton

Agenda Item 5

This page is intentionally left blank

INPATIENT CARE REPORT
Page 47
Agenda Item 5

Pete Flavell - Healthwatch Sutton
Manager

Agenda Item 5

Why we looked at inpatient
care
Our prioritisation process identified the
following in order:
GP Access - Completed
Outpatient Care – Completed
Inpatient Care – Published
Mental Health - Planned

Page 48

•
•
•
•

Setting up the project

Page 49

• Looked at the catchment area and approached
Healthwatch Merton (Surrey?)
• Invited anyone to become a member of the Inpatient
Project Group and held inaugral meeting
• Looked at existing to data to identify key concerns
• Approached Healthwatch Volunteers (Sutton and
Merton)
• Consulted key trust staff and identified participating
wards (max 8) AMU, A3, B5, C3, C5, C6, Derby, Oaks
• Developed and agreed questions (carers, observation
sheets)
• Put together programme of visits over 6 weeks.

Agenda Item 5

Page 50

Very supportive staff
170+ patient surveys completed
Mostly positive feedback
Volunteers enjoyed it
Very little opportunity for Carers
survey
• Observation sheets
• Would have liked 20 response per ward
(capacity and time)
•
•
•
•
•

Agenda Item 5

Implementation

Commendations
OVERALL - Average rating of the ‘overall experience’ of staying on the
ward, across all participating wards is 8 out of 10.
TRUST IN NURSES - 89% of patients advised that they ‘Agreed’ or
‘Strongly Agreed’ that they trusted the nurses on the ward that they were
staying on.
Page 51

TRUST IN DOCTORS - 91% of patient advised that they ‘Agreed’ or
‘Strongly Agreed’ that they trusted the doctors on the ward that they
were staying on.
OTHER STAFF - Analysis of comments relating to ‘other staff’ show that
these were overwhelmingly positive (only 8 negative from 135 comments).

Agenda Item 5

WARD CLEANLINESS – Staff and volunteers visiting wards noted an overall
high level of cleanliness and this is also reflected in patient comments

Page 52

GENERAL - We have produced individual ward-based reports for each of the 8
participating wards.
RECOMMENDATION - Individual wards respond to these reports
NOISE AT NIGHT - Just less than half of all patients surveyed said that they had
been bothered by noise at night on the ward. A fifth of patients have been
bothered by light.
RECOMMENDATION – Investigate effective ways of alleviating both noise and
light issues on wards that impact on patient’s rest/sleep.
SUFFICIENT NURSES - 1 in 10 patients said that they felt that there were not
enough nurses on a weekday, rising to 1 in 5 patients when asked the same
question about nursing staff levels at the weekend.
RECOMMENDATION - St Helier wards to look at any real/perceived deficit in
nurse staffing levels to reassure patients (this could be achieved as part of
Recommendation 1 above).
OTHER – There is a significant amount of analysis that has not been used to
make recommendations in this report.
RECOMMENDATION -To look at all the remaining analysis to see if there are
any other areas where potential improvements can be made.

Agenda Item 5

Recommendations

Potential Areas for
Action
RECOMMENDATION - that the full data is shared with Mitie
and that Mitie respond with any action/feedback in relation to
the food provided to patients.
Page 53

RECOMMENDATION – Investigate potential ways to improve
English communication between nurses and patients
RECOMMENDATION – Look at ways to reduce the number of
incidents where nurses spoke in front of patients as if they
were not there potentially through awareness/training.

Agenda Item 5

RECOMMENDATION – Assess any ways to reduce the cost of TV
for patients and cover areas where TV is not available.

Page 54

In response to this a number of senior nurses now conduct night visits
regularly. This has highlighted the need for further review of some behaviours
at night, radios on at the desk, noisy talking by staff, lights. This has now
formed the basis of a larger piece of work where we as nurses will develop a
night standard centred around the following;
• Dimming lights at a set time
• Reducing noise on phones by turning to dull sound
• Maintaining nurse call buzzers but monitoring answering them closer at
night
• Formal series of night visits with feedback to wards through e update
• Ensuring all bins are soft close
• Continue to roll out bay nursing where the nurse is seated in the bay and
not at the desk
• Obtain eye masks and ear plugs for patients through the introduction of
comfort packs on wards

Agenda Item 5

Noise at Night

Sufficient Nurses on Wards

Page 55

The survey found a variation in numbers of nurses at weekends compared to
weekdays.
• Through the annual establishments review this has now changed and the
same numbers of nurses are on duty 7 days a week due to the change in
ward activity.
• Ward boards will clearly state numbers of staff on each shift
• Nurses to ensure intentional rounding is carried out 2 hourly to ensure
every patient is asked about comfort, pain and position regularly
throughout the day.
• Nurse in charge badges will be re-introduced to ensure all visitors and
patients know who is in charge
• The nurse in charge will go round every patient once a day and this will be
included in our ward improvement programme for 2017/8

Agenda Item 5

•

TV
•
•

A programme of refurbishment is taking place I the main wards. As we
carry
this out a TV will be placed on the wall in each bay
More work will be done to introduce volunteers who can read and chat to
patients to provide company

Page 56

•

that this very poor practice is demonstrate as unacceptable
Observational audits being introduced in 2017 (QIS Audits) where we have
trained a number of senor nurses to undertake will look for this behaviour
and tackle it head on.
We are also reviewing our bedside handovers to ensure that staff are
explaining this process to the patient and can include them in the
information shared.

Agenda Item 5

Nurses Talking Over
Whilst this was a small number of respondents it is unacceptable practice
Patients
• We will highlight this through our Patient First programme, we will ensure

Individual Wards
•
•
•
•

•
•

Agenda Item 5

•

Page 57

•

15 Step programme in place to assess the wards
SWLEOC to replace windows to improve the temperature in Derby and
Oaks
Posters showing Healthwatch Feedback in staff areas.
Detailed Action Plan from Mitie in response to the food feedback. Food
tasting sessions to check the quality and taste of the food. If you stay
more than 3 weeks, you get a personal visit from a Mitie employee to see
how the variety can be improved. Sometimes this will involve giving
patient vouchers for the canteen. Improving by enforcing ‘protected’ meal
times
EStH now have ‘Patient Centred Care’ (termed intentional rounding
elsewhere). Each patient is checked on every 2 hours to check pain and
other needs etc.
Language and accent barriers – Staff have been asked to check for
understanding with patients before moving on.
AMU being refurbished to have a Rapid Assessment Area at both Epsom and
St Helier to improve patient flow.
Recruitment drive in the Philippines to address staff shortages

Agenda Item 5

Action Event

Page 58

Page 59
Sutton Scrutiny Committee

Agenda Item 6

South West London and St George’s Mental Health NHS Trust

Progress Report: South West London and St
George’s Mental Health NHS Trust

1
www.swlstg-tr.nhs.uk

Agenda Item 6

Page 60

Sutton Scrutiny Committee

South West London and St George’s Mental Health NHS Trust

Contents
PART 1:

June 2016 CQC inspection and follow up

03

PART 2:

Estates Modernisation Programme - Update

04

PART 3:

Service Line Management changes

07

London Borough of Sutton Scrutiny Committee: Wednesday 12 July 2017
Thank you for providing South West London and St George’s Mental Health NHS Trust (SWLSTG)
with the opportunity to update you on our latest progress and changes that may affect the London
Borough of Sutton.

2
www.swlstg-tr.nhs.uk

Page 61

Agenda Item 6
South West London and St George’s Mental Health NHS Trust

Sutton Scrutiny Committee

1. June 2016 CQC Inspection and follow up
The Trust received a full Chief Inspector of Hospitals (CIH) inspection in March 2016. A
summary chronology of the inspection and production of the action plans are set out below:
14 October 2015

Trust notified of inspection

14-18 March 2016

Inspection week

4 May 2016

High level feedback received

19 May 2016

Draft reports received for factual accuracy
checking

3 June 2016

Trust submitted factual accuracy corrections

16 June 2016

Reports published

7 July 2016

Quality improvement plan presented to Trust
Board for approval

25 July 2016

Quality Improvement plan sent to CQC

27 July 2016

Quality Summit

27/28 September 2016

Focused re-inspection

17 November 2016

Results of re-inspection draft reports issued to
Trust for factual accuracy. Resulted in rerating of the organisation to ‘Good’.

th

30 November 2016

Revised CQC reports published

Returning to carry out a follow up inspection in September, the Inspectors said that they were
impressed by the improvements that were evident in the Trust’s supervision, administrative and
medicines management processes and they were now confident that eight out of the ten core
services were rated as ‘Good’ and the Trust now rates as ‘Good’ overall for well led, caring,
effective and responsive.
The report highlights several areas of good practice, including:


The caring staff across all services: 'staff were enthusiastic, passionate and demonstrated a
clear commitment to their work. Care was delivered by hard-working, caring and
compassionate staff'.



Positive developments made in acute inpatient services, community learning disability services,
child adolescent and mental health services.



‘Young people and their families were treated as partners in their care' and stated that 'staff
treated young people and their families with kindness, dignity and respect'



The Trust's record of challenging stigma and discrimination saying that 'excellent work is taking
place with local communities to break down the stigma associated with mental illness' and
make services more accessible.

There have been significant improvements in the acute care pathway. Whilst demand was still very
high and this presented a daily challenge, patients had an improved level of support to access the
services they clinically needed.
3
www.swlstg-tr.nhs.uk

Agenda Item 6

Page 62

Sutton Scrutiny Committee

South West London and St George’s Mental Health NHS Trust

The inspection also helped us assess areas where the Trust needs to do more and over the next
year we will be focusing on improving elements of our community-based mental health services and
rehabilitation (Long stay) mental health care pathways for adults of working age. The CQC has
rated these services as Requiring Improvement in 4 out of 5 Key Lines of Inquiry (Safe, Effective,
Responsive, and Well-Led). The Quality and Safety Assurance Committee (QSAC) closely monitors
the progress with the CQC Quality Improvement Plan and receives a monthly report that focuses on
CQC compliance in these two areas.
The trust moved to service line management structures in April 2017 (See below). This has
supported greater clinical leadership and will ensure consistency and reduce variation across the
trust. Though the transformation board, as agreed at the CQC Quality Summit, there is an
agreement to bring in mental health strategies to support the review of community services
provision for mental health across the five boroughs.
The Trust continues to work hard to improve staff supervision levels, administrative support and
medicine management as required by the CQC. The frequency of 1:1 supervision sessions with
members of staff varies from team to team; the trust is working to ensure consistency across all
teams. QSAC also closely monitors the on-going compliance with the medicines management
recommendations identified by the CQC. The monitoring is based on consistent feedback from the
medicines management audit programme.
Sutton Teams are doing well in the area of admin support, so much so that the CQC removed this
regulatory requirement and they are now rated as ‘Good’ and have been commended on the
progress made. However, the self-assessed position demonstrates that further work is required to
consistently embed the changes and sustain them.
Foundation Trust status
With the new rating of ‘Good’ the Trust is in a position to apply for Foundation Trust status.
The Trust remains committed to the Foundation Trust model though there are clearly a number of
system factors which require an immediate focus including the Sustainable Transformation Plans.

2. Estates Modernisation Programme - Update
Introduction
The Estate Modernisation Programme (EMP) is an exciting project which will revolutionise the way
mental health services are delivered in south west London for generations to come and will also
provide new facilities for our local community.
The programme will be entirely self-funded through selling surplus land no longer needed for our
services. We will be investing £160 million which will deliver: Two new campuses with 1st class in-patient facilities at Springfield and Tolworth
 A 32 acre public park
 Extensive community healthcare
 Brand new homes in Tooting
 Over £5 million for new transport facilities
Current status of the programme
In order to ensure the programme is completed as soon as possible the entire estate will be
developed by one ‘Master Developer’. The Trust has a three stage process to ensure the right
development partner is selected to deliver the whole of the programme. This involved selecting a
‘long list’ of development partners, evaluating their bids, before agreeing a set of three to move onto
the ‘short list’ stage.
4
www.swlstg-tr.nhs.uk

Page 63

Agenda Item 6
South West London and St George’s Mental Health NHS Trust

Sutton Scrutiny Committee

The Trust recently announced the short list of preferred development partners to move onto the
next stage of the selection process. These partners are:
 Macquarie Corporate Holdings Pty Ltd & Kier Construction Ltd
 Notting Hill Housing Trust & MACE Ltd
 STEP (Kajima Partnerships and Sir Robert McAlpine Capital Ventures Ltd
The final stage will be to continue dialogue with the three development partners listed above before
choosing the preferred partner in Autumn 2017. The selection of the preferred development partner
is subject to approval by our Finance & Investment Committee and our Trust Board.
Following this we will write a Full Business Case which is presented to NHS Improvement, the
Department of Health and the Treasury for approval.
Richmond and Barnes Hospital Sites
In January 2017, the Trust also began the site marketing process for our Richmond Royal and part
of the Barnes Hospital sites. The Trust is currently going through the evaluation process of the bids
for Richmond Royal and will be announcing these in Summer 2017 and are in dialogue with
Richmond Council over Barnes Hospital.
The selection of the preferred bidder for these sites is expected to be received in December 2017,
subject to Trust Board and Department of Health approval. The money raised from the sales of
these sites will be reinvested into the wider Estates Modernisation Programme.
Timescales

January 2016
Phase One construction began on St George’s Gate (26 households)
January 2017
Site marketing process begins at the Richmond Royal and Barnes Hospital sites.
February 2017
Short list of preferred development partners for the rest of the Estates Modernisation Programme
announced.
Summer 2017
Preferred development partners announced following evaluation process (expected June/July)
Autumn 2017
Phase One completed
Winter 2017
Detailed planning application submitted to the London Borough of Wandsworth
December 2017
Preferred bidder announced for Richmond Royal and Barnes Hospital sites
Summer 2018
Building work begins at Springfield Hospital
2020
Building work begins at Tolworth Hospital
5
www.swlstg-tr.nhs.uk

Page 64

Agenda Item 6

South West London and St George’s Mental Health NHS Trust

Sutton Scrutiny Committee

2024
Estates Modernisation Programme completed
Benefits for our patients
Our staff currently delivers excellent care for our patients every day but most of our existing
inpatient mental health facilities were not built with today’s needs in mind.
Mental health services are also moving towards a more community focused approach to ensure our
service users can receive care in their most convenient and preferred environment.
At the heart of our Estates Strategy is a new vision for the delivery of mental health services
including:



Stronger community services in which hospital care is minimised
People receiving an early expert assessment from a doctor where the service user’s home
is the hub
People given more power to take control of their lives and the support they receive

Alongside the vision to deliver care closer to our patients’ homes, the Estates strategy seeks to
modernise inpatient care. Inpatient standards need to be improved to give our patients the best
chance to recover in the best environment and support our staff to deliver the best care.
The estates modernisation programme has been developed around increasing standards to
provide:






Access to outside space
Separate accommodation for men and women with appropriate standards of dignity
A smaller number of beds in each ward
At least 3 mental health wards on each site to ensure cross cover for emergencies
Staff with the ability to monitor and observe patients by ‘line of sight’ and to support
appropriate levels of staff cover

The Trust is also working closely with our clinical teams to establish the requirements needed for
outpatient facilities.
Once completed EMP the two sites will contain the following services:
Springfield

Tolworth

4 working age adult wards
4 secure forensic wards
1 adult psychiatric intensive care unit
1 specialist adult eating disorder ward
1 specialist deaf adult ward

3 working age adult wards
2 older adult wards
1 OCD/BDD specialist ward
2 specialist CAMHS wards (Deaf & ED)
1 CAMHS acute ward
1 CAMHS psychiatric intensive care unit

6
www.swlstg-tr.nhs.uk

Page 65
Sutton Scrutiny Committee

Agenda Item 6
South West London and St George’s Mental Health NHS Trust

3. Service Line Management
The Trust has now moved into a new service line management (SLM) structure. The new structure
began on Monday 3 April.
Prior to moving into SLM the Trust worked with a number of other mental health trusts across the
country and we believe this new management will universally improve the quality of care our
patients receive. The structure, which moves the organisation from a borough focus, to a service
line focus, will enable our clinicians to take the lead on service developments and drive
improvements in patient care. Services will therefore be delivered in a consistent way which benefit
our patients and help us to be more effective and efficient.
The principle objectives we aim to deliver through SLM are:
1)

Leadership by clinicians: driving improvement to patient care

2)

Quality-focused healthcare: delivering better services for every patient

3)

Greater efficiency and productivity: guaranteeing good value for money

4)

Devolved decision-making: judgements made by our best health professionals

The organisation is now managed by a new senior leadership team in five services lines which are
named:
 Acute and Urgent Care
 Cognition and Mental Health in Ageing
 Community
 Forensic, Specialist and National
 Child and Adolescent Mental Health
The Trust is committed to ensuring strong links are still maintained at a borough level and have
therefore been working with external stakeholders to ensure they are aware of their new links.

7
www.swlstg-tr.nhs.uk

Agenda Item 6
Sutton Scrutiny Committee

Page 66
South West London and St George’s Mental Health NHS Trust

Our Community Directorate will act as a key contact for our boroughs and includes specific borough
aligned staff including our Associate Clinical Director and our Clinical Manager for Sutton and
Merton.
Key contacts
Clinical Director, Community Directorate – Dr Stuart Adams – stuart.adams@swlstg-tr.nhs.uk
Associate Clinical Director for Sutton & Merton – Dr Paul Brain – paul.brain@swlstg-tr.nhs.uk
Clinical Manger for Sutton & Merton – Ann Traynor – ann.traynor@swlstg-tr.nhs.uk

8
www.swlstg-tr.nhs.uk

Page 67
Sutton Scrutiny Committee

Agenda Item 6
South West London and St George’s Mental Health NHS Trust

South West London and St George’s Mental Health NHS Trust
Springfield University Hospital, 61 Glenburnie Road, London SW17 7DJ
Telephone: 020 3513 5000
Website: www.swlstg-tr.nhs.uk
Copyright
© 2016 South West London and St George’s Mental Health NHS Trust
9
Published and distributed by: Communications Department

www.swlstg-tr.nhs.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Integrated Performance Report
April 2017 (month 1) - SUMMARY

STRENGTHS

STRENGTHS

STRENGTHS

We continue to perform well in terms of mortality rates,
reporting Hospital Standardised Mortality Rates and
Summary Hospital Mortality Rates below national
averages.

Maternity recommended score for the Friends and Family
Test remain high.

Strong communications activity continues with positive
media coverage and public engagement.

Performance in April against the A&E 4 hour waiting time
standard remains strong at 95.2% in April.

Trust has achieved a deficit position of £4.1M overall for
April, £0.2M better than plan.

All Cancer waiting time standards were achieved in March
(reported one month in arrears).

Clinical workforce level is maintained over the target level,
and overall Nursing workforce showed net positive change
in April.

Safe staffing indicators remain strong.

Diagnositcs 6 weeks waiting standard performance
consistently high.

Trust agency spend remains below the financial trajectory.

Last minute cancelled operations achieved the ceiling
traget for the first time in 8 months. No 28day breach

Sickness absence level dropped below ceiling target,
lowest level in the last 13 months.

DEVELOPMENT AREA

DEVELOPMENT AREA

There has been a drop in the completion of timely
responses to complaints and this remains a challenged
area.

Turnover and vacancy rate remains above threshold.

DEVELOPMENT AREA

VTE assessments have remained steady at 94.5%, but still
remains below target.
One MRSA trust apportioned case was reported in April.

Page 69

C.diff ceiling target for 17/18 will remain at 39. In April,
only one trust apportioned case against the trajectory of 5
was reported.

RTT incomplete pathways standards has not been met for
April with one patient waiting over 52 weeks at the end of

RISK REGISTER:

Agenda Item 7

The trust’s corporate risk register has been reviewed at the May Performance Assurance and Risk Committee.
New risks added: 2.6 delays in production of patient letters
Risks downgraded or removed:
Previous risk relating to the completion of staff appraisals has been incorporated in risk 1.5 concerning staff morale and engagement
3.11 New Opthalmology server is now operational
Other significant changes: All risks have been reviewed and updated accordingly at start of new financial year, including end of financial year target risk rating. Format has been changed to
add an additional column for Final Target risk rating and date – this will be refined over further iterations. Where appropriate, some risks that have been aggregated together in 16/17 will be
identified separately to provide greater focus on areas of concern.

Measure

Total HSMR

Description

Period

Ratio of the observed to the expected number of
deaths, multiplied by 100. HSMR (Hospital
Standardised Mortality Ratio) is in-hospital
deaths, covering 56 Diagnosis groups, adjusted
for palliative care.

Feb16Jan17

Jan-17

91.7

98.3

Trend

Variation and Risks
Total HSMR
Risk ratio has been within the expected range
throughout the year.
HSMR increased in January but the risk ratio
remains below the national average.

Data source: Dr Foster

Weekend
HSMR

Ratio of the observed to the expected number of
deaths, multiplied by 100. HSMR (Hospital
Standardised Mortality Ratio) is in-hospital
deaths, covering 56 Diagnosis groups, adjusted
for palliative care.

96.3

Weekend HSMR
Risk ratio has been within the expected range
throughout the year.
Weekend HSMR (risk ratio for those admitted
over the weekend) is a new measure monitored in
the Single Oversight Framework.

93.1

Data source: Dr Foster

Mortality

Data source: NHS Digital (Quarterly)

Crude
Mortality
Rate

Mortality
review
forms
2016/17

The number of deaths at the
Trust as a proportion of
discharges.

Oct15 Sep16

Published Mar 17: Year to Sep 2016 SHMI
was 0.96, compared to 0.94 the previous
reporting period (to June 2016). Remains
within expectations.
Next publication June 17

0.957

16/17

Apr-16

Total

1.41%

1.52%

Elective

0.06%

0.09%

Non elective

2.66%

2.71%

From April 2017, Trusts will be required to collect and publish on a
quarterly basis specified information on deaths. This should be
through a paper and an agenda item to a public Board meeting in
each quarter to set out the Trust’s policy and approach (by the end of
Q2) and publication of the data and learning points (from Q3
onwards).

There were 120 deaths in April 2017,
compared to 111 in April 2016.

Division (where patient died)
Medicine
Regional Services
Emergency dept
Surgery
Clinical Services
Post discharge
Grand Total

% of total
50%
29%
18%
2%
1%
0%
100%

16/17
130
74
47
5
2
1
259

Mortality review forms should be completed if it
was deemed that a detailed investigation into a
death should occur. There is an issue in current
process whereby the investigator is not
necessarity from the division where the death has
occurred but the division information is not
recorded on the form.
Reporting process is being reviewed to comply
with the new requirement.

Executive lead: Ruth Charlton and James Marsh
Report lead: Joint Medical Directors

Page 70

- SHMI (quarterly)

Ratio of the observed to the expected number of deaths.
SHMI (Summary Hospital Mortality Indicator) includes all inhospital deaths as well as deaths occuring 30 days after
discharge from the hospital.

Agenda Item 7

1-1 Safe and Effective: Improve patient safety and reduce avoidable harm - MORTALITY -

1-2 Safe and Effective: Improve patient safety and reduce avoidable harm - QUALITY MEASURES Measures in this section are reported one month in arrears, and therefore the report shows March 2017 and year total for 2016/2017.
17/18 measures are under review for Dementia. Stroke reporting will change after July 2017.
Measure

Emergency
readmissions

Risk
assessment

Stroke

Risk
assessment

Dementia

Risk
assessment

VTE

Percentage of patients who
returned to hospital as an
emergency within 30 days
of the last time they left
hospital after a stay.
Internal threshold is 5.8%

80% of the patients
spending at least 90% of
their time in the stroke
unit

Higher risk TIA cases to
be treated within 24
hours. Threshold is 60%

Assessment and referral for
patients 75+yrs admitted as
emergency for more than 72
hours and identified as
potentially having dementia.
Threshold is 90% for both KPIs

15/16

16/17

Mar-17

Total
readmissions

7.5%

7.4%

7.7%

With exclusions

5.2%

3.9%

2.6%

59.3%

60.9%

St Helier

84.6%

86.4%

Epsom

38.9%

43.8%

86.0%

83.3%

Epsom
76.2%

84.1%
St Helier

Screening

93.1%

58.1%

38.9%

Risk
assessment

85.9%

72.2%

66.7%

Total admission

94.1%

93.9%

94.6%

Elective

96.5%

96.2%

96.4%

Non elective

91.2%

91.2%

92.5%

Variation and Risks

Emergency readmission
% of patients who returned to hospital as an
emergency within 30 days of the last time they
left hospital after a stay.
Exclusions (cancer or obstetrics) are applied in
outcomes framework measure.
Stroke
Both sites improved in March with trust overall
performance 73% in March.
Stroke indicators will be monitored until June.

Transient Ischaemic Attack
Latest data refresh showed delayed data entry at
Epsom. Overall trust performance in March was
at 60.7% but annual performance dropped to
54.7%

Dementia
For 17/18, metrics will be reviewed to reflect trust
objectives in future reports.

VTE risk assessment
Risk assessment is done using the clinical risk
assessment criteria described in the national
tool.
Ongoing weekly monitoring by specialty.

Executive lead: Ruth Charlton and James Marsh
Report lead: Joint Medical Directors

Agenda Item 7

Proportion of patients
assessed on admission for
Venous Thromboembolism (VTE) risk.
The threshold is 95%.

Trend

Page 71

Stroke
Transient
Ischaemic
Attack

Report Period

Description

1-3 Safe and Effective: Improve patient safety and reduce avoidable harm
Mar-17

Apr-17

Total Trust Incidents

1094

1010

Patient Safety Incidents

903

831

Never Events
Zero tolerance

1

0

Serious Incidents Requiring investigation
(SIRI) during the period

2

2

863

512

Total incidents reported to NRLS
(including re-exports)

Trend / Variation

Total PSIs
Of which

Incidents
and
Reporting

Reducing the
occurrence of
avoidable
harm.

Description

The total numbers and
percentages of the total PSIs
reported during the reporting
month according to moderate,
severe and death incidences
regardless of NRLS status.

831

Moderate

21

2.5%

Severe

4

0.5%

Death

2

0.2%

Agenda Item 7

Measure

The number of Trust Serious incidents reported to SECSU during the reporting month.
NRLS: The total number of incidents exported in the reporting month regardless of incident reported date
(including severity changes and old incidents)
Duty of Candour compliance by Division

Duty of
Candour
(DoC)

Compliance

RCA compliance for all
concise, comprehensive, and
SI reports.
Note: there is no reference
here to grade

Concise

Cases

93%

83.3%

Medicine
Women's and Children's
Surgery
Other

33.0%

33.0%

Medicine
Surgery
Women's & Children's
Clinical Services
Renal
SWLEOC
Patient Services

Comprehensive

0.0%

0.0%

Serious Incident (SI)

100%

100%

Compliant %compliance

5
3
1
3

Concise
0%
50%
67%

3
3
1
3

Comprehensive

Safety
Thermometer

-new
harms-

Falls per
1000
beddays

SI
100%

An embedded Root Cause Analysis
(RCA) within Datix and has been
sent for approval to the Executive
lead within the reporting month due.

3 cases

James Marsh and Ruth Charlton, Joint Medical Directors
Jill Down, Associate Director of Quality

Apr-17

Variance

97.4%

98.0%

Breakdown of new harms
Falls: Alexander x1, Croft x2, Northey x1 EOC Oaks x1, A3 x2,B6 x1,C5 x1 HSW x1, MMW x1 (low harm), VTE: CCU
x2, Alexander x1, EAMU x1 and B1 x1 (New PE) .
Hospitial Acquired Pressure Ulcers: Alexander ward x2, Britten x1 MMW x1(Cat2 new ) MMW x1(Cat3 old ), New
UTI: Swift x2,B5 x1, SAU x1, Northey x2, Britten x5, Croft x2, Glouc x1, Alex x5, C2 x1, C5 x1, A6 x1 Buckley x2.

Number of falls

124

129

Falls per 1000
beddays

5.55

5.87

Mar-17

Description

Percentage of patients who received harm free
care - i.e. not had falls or developed a pressure
ulcer, UTI or VTE while in our care.

Falls are a major concern for
patient safety and a marker of
care quality

0%

12 cases due for submission in
April.
10 cases showed DoC evidence.

0%

Executive lead:
Report lead:

Measure

60.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%

April
None
Low
Moderate
Severe
Death

Falls
106
21
1
1
0

Executive lead: Charlotte Hall, Chief Nurse
Report lead: Carole Webster, Deputy Chief Nurse

per 1000
4.82
0.96
0.05
0.05
0.00

Page 72

RCA

Moderate or above harm incidents reported date
range for RCA compliance cases, which required a
trust letter sent to the patient / family.This includes all
concise, comprehensive and SIs with a submission
due date within the reporting month.

1-4 Safe and Effective: SAFE STAFFING
Measure

CHPPD

Safe Staffing
Registered
nurses (RNs)
Wards

Safe Staffing

Care Hours per Patient Day (CHPPD):
Actual hours of registered nurses and
HCA’s divided by total number of
patient admissions every 24 hours.

RNs monthly
expected hours by
shift versus actual
monthly hours per
shift. 80%
threshold.

HCAs monthly
expected hours by
shift versus actual
monthly hours per
shift.
80% threshold.

Day shift

Trend and Variation

Apr-17

Care Hours per Patient Day
CHPPD for April was 7.8 which has
remained at a consistent reporting position
for the Trust.

7.8

Safe Staffing compliance
Safe Care is now being used in decision
making on staff redeployment in real time
to ensure that wards are safely staffed. It
is also being utilised at bed meetings to
give an overview of whole site challenges
on staffing and to provide visibility from
ward to board. This will also now be part
of our SITREP reporting using the
sunburst graph following training the CSM
teams.

90%

---------Night shift

Day shift

94%

106%

---------Night shift

119%
Apr-17

Safe Staffing
ED and
Theatres

Monthly expected hours by shift versus actual
monthly hours per shift.
80% threshold.

Emergency
Department
Theatres

Supervisory
Status

Comments

Our standard is for ward
managers to be supervisory for at
least half of their time on the ward

72%

RN
HCA
RN/RM
ODPs
Care staff

St Helier
94.0%
101.0%
NA

Day
Epsom
85.0%
90.0%
NA

EOC

98.6%
100%
97.1%

St Helier
97.5%
100.0%

Night
Epsom
90.0%
NA

EOC

Enhanced care (specials) Additional
HCA support has been required. The
workforce Matron in reporting and
undertaking daily reports of the acuity
levels on the ward broken down per ward
which captures the enhanced and more
dependant patients. This will support
increase support for divisions to check the
accuracy of the patient dependencies.

Supervisory Status
72 % of wards achieved the standard of 50% or more WML.
Epsom achieved 81% of this time and St Helier achieved
68% of this time. This reduction is due to sickness and
secondments from Northey,C4,C5,EMAU,B5 which has
limited the WML taken this month.

In April a total of 17 Registered Nurses started in new posts, whilst 5 of these were internal moves to new areas 3 included staff promotions. In addition to the Registered nurses 9
HCA`s also started and 2 Associate Practitioners. The ED assessment days have been successful and other divisions are rolling this out as well.
Lastly our overseas nurses arrive in May and have been allocated mentors.
Executive lead: Charlotte Hall, Chief Nurse
Report lead: Tracy Whelan, Head of Nursing

Agenda Item 7

Additional Information

April
Recruitment

Page 73

Healthcare
assistants
(HCAs)
Wards

Description

1-5 Safe and Effective: INFECTION PREVENTION and CONTROL

MRSA
bacteraemia

Clostridium
Difficile

Hand
Hygiene
(HH) Audit

17/18
YTD

Apr-17

Number
of
case(s)

National objective is zero
tolerance of avoidable MRSA
bacteraemias.

6

1

1

per
100,000
beddays

2.2

National target applied for
the Trust for 17/18 are
39 cases / 15.9 per 100,000
beddays, on or after the 4th
day of admission (post 72
hours).

Number
of
case(s)

32

1

1

per
100,000
beddays

11.9

4.6

4.6

Reporting on MSSA and
E.Coli have been
mandatory for NHS Trusts.
There are currently no
target associated.

MSSA

84

5

5

E.Coli

285

18

18

16/17
Qtr4
78.9%

Mar-17
88.9%

Audit is undertaken to monitor
compliance by taking 10 staff
measurements in accordance with the
WHO guidance on the five moments of
hand hygiene.

Trend

Variation and Risk

MRSA: There were 2 cases in April of which
one was trust apportioned.

of wards
above
85%

4.6

4.6
C.Diff: There were 8 cases in April of which
one was trust apportioned. SPC chart shows a
reduction in cases during the last 5 months.

Hand Hygiene: In April the number of returned audits was 73 out of 93 of the required areas
Apr-17 The results are disappointing with some areas failing to achieve 80% compliance.
78.5% 11 areas did not submit the Audit
5 areas failed the compliance and scored less than 80%
of all
4 areas failed the audit by performing less than 10 observations

SPECIFIC INFECTION CONTROL ISSUES

Outbreaks

There were 3 outbreak during the the month of April, as follows:
Buckley ward; outbreak 1, 05/04/17 – 13/04/17, 7 patients affected, 1 patients confirmed Norovirus positive.
Buckley ward; outbreak 2, 17/04/17 – 26/04/17, 8 patients affected, 2 patients confirmed Norovirus positive.
Croft ward outbreak: 10/04/17 – 23/04/17, 14 patients affected, 3 patients confirmed Norovirus positive.
Debrief meetings have been help to review the outbreak to identify and implement any improvement required.

Hand Hygiene
audits

The auditor must observe a minimum of 10 opportunities to undertake hand hygiene for any member of staff on the ward. We expect a minimum of 80% compliance with
undertaking hand hygiene opportunities for every area. Any area that fails to submit the audit or does not complete the 10 observations will be marked as zero
compliance. Once this practice is firmly embedded the aim will be to increase compliance to 90% of opportunities taken and it is envisaged this will be within the next
year

Executive lead: Charlotte Hall, Chief Nurse and Director of Infection Prevention and Control
Report lead: Dr.Shaktijit Dave, Consultant in Medical Microbiology and Lead Infection Control Doctor

Page 74

MSSA /
E.Coli

16/17

Description

Agenda Item 7

Measure

2-1 Caring and Responsive: MATERNITY CARE
Measure

1:1 care by
a midwife in
labour

Caesarean
sections
Total

Caesarean
sections

Severe Post
Partum
Haemorrhage

Neonatal
Encephalop
athy Rate

Apr-17

99.1%

98.3%

97%

100%

Percentage of deliveries
receiving 1 to 1 care by a
midwife during labour.
Internal target 95% or higher.

St Helier

Percentage of caesarean section
out of total births.
Caesarean sections are counted
in total.
Threshold is 27% or lower.

St Helier

25.1%

30.0%

Epsom

27.1%

27.1%

St Helier

15.6%

21.5%

Epsom

16.9%

18.8%

3.5%

3.4%

3.0%

4.7%

St Helier

0

0

Epsom

0

0

St Helier

19.1%

19.3%

Epsom

17.5%

16.5%

Epsom

Percentage of unplanned
caesarean section out of total
births.

Percentage of deliveries with
St Helier
severe post partum
haemorrhage (PPH) greater than
1500 mls.
Epsom
Threshold is 3% or lower.

Neonatal encephalopathy is a
clinically defined syndrome of
disturbed neurological function in
the earliest days of life in an infant
born at or beyond 35 weeks of
gestation.

Birth centre births as a
percentage of total births.
Target is 20% or higher.

Trend and Variation

Comments

99.1% Trust wide performance for
April. 1:1 care in labour in line with
target and quality indicator.
This includes BBA's which is why the
target is not 100%.
Trust wide performance 28.8% for April
below national/London average.
Emergency CS 20.4%. The trust has
recently agreed to use carbetocin for
emergency CS deliveries in addition to
planned.
Post Partum Haemorrhage: 3.97%
Trust wide performance for April. The LW
lead consultants and midwives are aware
of the ongoing PPH focus. A selfnominated PPH midwife champion has
already created a poster to raise
awareness on preventative measures in
PPH which has been shared cross-site.
·The major association with significant
PPH is assisted vaginal deliveries.
Trainees have been instructed to obtain
consultant supervision during
instrumental deliveries (when they are on
site) and to respond and escalate early
during a PPH. Consultants have also
been reminded of the need to supervise
trainees. Continuous audits are in
progress

18.1% Trust wide performance for April.
This is continuing on an upward trend at
Epsom. The target is high, but realistic.

Executive lead: Charlotte Hall, Chief Nurse
Report lead: Marion Louki, Interim Head of Midwifery & Gynaecology

Agenda Item 7

Birth
Centres

Mar-17

Page 75

Emergency

Description

2-2 Caring and Responsive: PATIENT EXPERIENCE

FFT
Inpatient
(includes
daycases)

FFT
A&E

Friends and
Family Test for
A&E
Department

Friends and
Family Test
for
Marternity
- Question 2
(birth) only

Apr-17

30.7%

23.5%

Recommended score
Internal target 95%

94.5%

92.4%

Response rate
Internal target
Q2 - 15%, Q4 - 20%

16.3%

17.8%

Recommended score
Internal target 95%

84.3%

85.8%

Response rate
Internal target
Q2 - 25%, Q4 - 30%

24.0%

11.8%

Recommended score
Internal target 95%

100.0%

98.0%

Response rate
Internal target

Trend - response rate

Trend - recommended score

Q2 - 32.5%, Q4 - 35%

Page 76

FFT
Maternity

Friends and
Family Test for
Inpatient Wards
and Daycases

Mar-17

Friends and Family Test: A&E response rate increased from last month, and significant improvement seen compared to the same period last year. Inpatient and maternity
response rates have dropped in April.
PALS: Information on PALS is being reviewed to be included from the next report.

Complaints
and PALs

All complaints
should be
responded to
within the
agreed
timescale.

New complaints
New complaints per
1,000 patient contacts

Responded within
timescale

16/17

Apr-17

594

25

0.63

0.37

57.8%

30.6%

Agenda Item 7

Description

Measure

Complaints:
Response has been slow in April. Total number of open cases at
the end of the month was 169, slightly up from 167 in March.

Executive lead: Lisa Thomson, Director of Communicaitions
Report lead:

2-3 Caring and Responsive: CANCER ACCESS
Measures in this section are reported one month in arrears, and therefore the report shows March 2017 and year total for 2016/2017.
Measure

Urgent
referral to
appointment

DTT to first
treatment

Subsequent

treatment

Urgent
referral to
treatment

15/16

16/17

Mar-17

Maximum waiting time of 2
weeks from urgent GP referral
for suspected cancer to first
appointment.
Threshold is 93%.

94.6%

95.5%

95.9%

Maximum waiting time of 31
days from Decision to Treat
(DTT) to first definitive treatment.
Threshold is 96%

98.5%

98.5%

100%

Maximum
waiting time of
31 days from
DTT to
subsequent
treatment.

Maximum
waiting time
of 62 days
from referral
to treatment.

Anti-cancer drug
regimen
Target is 98%

100%

100%

Variation and Risk

Trend

2 week wait standard:
In March, activity following the urgent GP referral
for suspected cancer has increased 15%
compared to the same period last year. Number of
appointments for the year is 9% higher than15/16.

31 day first treatment: No breach was reported
for March. For the year, 15 breaches were
reported in total of which 11 were in Skin cancer.

100%

No breach reported in 15/16.
3 cases in March (62 YTD) all treated within standard.

4 cases in March, all treated within the standard. Total 41 trust reported one breach for each quarter apart
cases for the year with 3 breaches (2 in Lower GI and 1 in from Quarter 3 when all patients were treated
within the standard.
Gynae).

Surgery
Target is 94%

95.8%

92.7%

100%

From urgent GP
referral.
Target is 85%

80.3%

87.5%

90.0%

NHS screening
programme.
Target is 90%

57.1%

69.2%

NA

Consultant upgrade. Target NA

95.7%

93.7%

95.2%

31 day subsequent treatment - surgery: The

Page 77

DTT to

Description

62 day Urgent GP Referrals
The trust achieved the target for the month and
quarter (87.3%).

62 day Screening Referrals
No case in March. Only 6.5 cases in 16/17 with 2
breaches.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

awaiting for CCG month12 report

Inter Trust
Transfer

awaiting for CCG month12 report
Executive lead: Caroline Landon, Chief Operating Officer
Report lead: Badriya Maghhabi, General Manager for Cancer

Agenda Item 7

100+ day breach

Measure

Referral to
Treatment

Elective
Length of
Stay (LoS)

last minute
Cancelled
Operation

Proportion of patient waiting
within 18 weeks from
referral at month end.
Applies to consultant-led
elective treatment. The
threshold is 92%.

16/17

Trust total

52week
breach

Maximum waiting time of 6 weeks for 15
key diagnostic tests and procedures.
The threshold is 99%.

Reducing the LoS requires
proactive planning of the
whole process of care, as
well as active discharge
planning.
(excludes daycases)

Elective operation cancelled
for non clinical nospital
reasons should be given a
binding date of within 28
days.

92.01%
Mar-17

Apr-17

91.2%

1

1

98.9%

99.7%

Trend

Variation and Risk
Referral to Treatment
One Urology patient was waiting over 52
weeks at the end of April. This patient has
been treated in May.

Diagnostics waiting time
Overall

3.3

3.4

65 years+

4.0

4.2

% cancelled
0.8% or below

1.29%

0.65%

28-day std.
zero tolerance

4

0

Good performance maintained n April with 17
patients waiting over 6 weeks at the end of the
month.

Executive lead: Caroline Landon, Chief Operating Officer
Report lead: Phillipa Jones, Director of Planned Care

Page 78

Diagnostic
Waiting
Times

Description

Agenda Item 7

2-4 Caring and Responsive: ELECTIVE CARE PATHWAYS

2-5 Caring and Responsive: EMERGENCY CARE PATHWAYS
Measure
Accident &
Emergency
Access

Description
Maximum waiting time
of 4 hours in A&E from
arrival to admission,
transfer or discharge.
Target of 95%.

16/17

Apr-17

95.3%

95.2%

12-hour
trolley waits

1

0

4.5

3.9

3,545

218

Non Elective
Length of
Stay (LoS)

Reducing the LoS requires proactive
planning of the whole process of care,
as well as active discharge planning

Delayed
Transfers of
Care (DToC)

Number of days delayed within the
month for all patients delayed
throughout the month

Site performance: St Helier site narrowly missed
the target in April at 94.5% and Epsom site
achieved at 96.3%.
NOTE: there was a delayed report of one 12 hour
trolley wait breach in March.
Benchmark (March and Quarter 4) For both
March and quarter 4, the trust was the only trust in
London achieving the target (excludes specialist
trusts). Nationally the trust ranked 7th for both
Type1 for all types in quarter 4.

Increased level seen in April from Croydon and Lambeth

Ambulance
arrivals

Handovers between
ambulance and A&E
must not be more than
60 minutes

Epsom

12,019

940

StHelier

16,745

1,326

30-60
minutes

1,949

159

Over 60
minutes

156

3

Executive lead: Caroline Landon, Chief Operating Officer
Report lead: Deborah Frodsham, Deputy Chief Operating Officer and Director of Unplanned Care

Agenda Item 7

Ambulance
Handover
Long waits

Number of ambulances
arriving to A&E.
Handovers are aimed to
take place within 15
minutes.

Page 79

4-hour
standard

Trend

Measure

Vacancy

Description

The difference between the
establishment and the staff In post
as a percentage of establishment,
Threshold revised to 10%

16/17

11.6%

Apr-17

17.3%

Trend

Variation
April's funded establishment included an additional
300 WTE compared to March, which was spread
across all staff groups including: additional clinical
services 86, nursing & midwifery 76.4 and Admin &
Clerical with 63. This is reflected in the increased
vacancy of 17.3%, compared with 11.6% in March.

Clinical workforce objective to
increase WTE from Mar-15 to Mar16 by 200 and maintain going
forward

169

207

Trust
Agency
Trajectory

Objective is to remain in line or below
the Trust Agency financial Trajectory
set by NHSI

918
(£'000s)

948
(£'000s)

We achieved 29k less than our April target of
977k, beginning the financial year on a positive
note.

Agency
Rate Cap
Trend

Agency Rate Cap initiative is 0%
Off framework (OF) bookings.
Planned, monitored, approach to
eliminate Over Cap (OC) bookings

Nursing
Net
Monthly

The Nursing Workforce Net Change
report is a monthly snapshot of current
workforce leavers and joiners. The
target is to be cost neutral or increased
staff retention levels.

OF = 0

OF = 0

OC = 104

OC = 118

1.7

1.5

We have now successfully achieved zero over
cap and off framework in Estates & Admin.
Doctors continue to be the main staff group
reported. Over cap Sonographers continue to
be used only when necessary.

In April we saw Registered Nurse joiners 8.04
and leavers 17.57 creating a -9.53 negative
net change.
Unregistered Nurse joiners 12 and leavers 1,
creating a 11 positive net change. Overall this
created a 1.47 positive nursing workforce net
monthly change.

Executive lead: Sue Winter, Director of Workforce
Report lead: Leanne Cutmore, Head of Workforce and Temporary Staffing

Page 80

Clinical
Workforce

The Trust set a target to increase its clinical staff by
200 WTE by 31 March 2016. This was achieved at
the end of 15/16. We continue to track this to ensure
the raised substantive staffing levels are maintained
& monitored. April 17 shows an increase of 18 wte in
additional clinical services and a drop of 26 nursing
& midwifery registered

Agenda Item 7

3-1 Well Led / Resources: WORKFORCE

3-2 Well Led / Resources: WORKFORCE
Measure

Description

Sickness
Absence

This is a combination of short term and
long term sickness absence.
Calculated using the staff in post (FTE)
days lost due to absence. Threshold is
3.8%

Staff
Turnover

12 month average of leavers against
FTE. Training Doctors are excluded
from the rates, as their inclusion would
skew the statistics due to their
relatively short time with the Trust.
Threshold is now 12%

Statutory and Mandatory Compliance,
Target is 95%

Objectives
&

4.35%

14.7%

Apr-17

Trend

Variation

3.60%

April's rate is 3.6%. This is 0.47% decrease on
March and maintains the downward trend since
January. Overall 16/17 was very similar to
15/16 in fluctuation and rate with the rolling
absence rate at 4.35% compared with 4.21% in
15/16.

15.3%

April saw an increased turnover of 15.3%
compared to 4.7% in March. Directorates
with the highest year end turnover are POD
at 27.8%, Strategy 23% and Clinical
Services 19%. The lowest is Renal Services
at 10.1%

88.3%

86.9%

Objectives Q1 17/18 - 80%

84%

N/A

Mid term review Q3 - 85%

42%

N/A

End of year review - 95%

61.6%

N/A

We have exceeded our target for Infection Control
at 96.9%, Manual Handling 96.8% and
Safeguarding Adults 95.1%. Information
Governance is currently at 11.5% and above the
trajectory for April.

Page 81

Training

16/17

Performance

Additional Information

Priorities for Q1

Reviewing objective set with team members and supporting staff to plan strategies to meet objectives & mandatory training

Agenda Item 7

Executive lead: Sue Winter, Director of Workforce
Report lead: Leanne Cutmore, Head of Workforce and Temporary Staffing

3-3 Well Led / Resources: COMMUNICATIONS and ENGAGEMENT

Website

Twitter

Sentiment

Sessions: the number of visits to
our trust website
Unique visitors: number of
unique users (based on IP
address) who visited our website
Top page: The most viewed
page on the website excluding
landing pages

Sessions
Unique visitors

Apr-17

65,783

57,243

44,741

39,352

Work for us

Ward
directory

Ward
directory

Work for us

7,893

7,968

98

78

66,200

69,000

Media
enquiries

21

19

Press releases

7

5

36%

51%

15%

15%

Top page
Second page

Followers: the number of Twitter
Followers
users that follow
@epsom_sthelier on Twitter
Tweets: The number we sent
during the month, excluding
Tweets
retweets and replies
Potential reach: number of twitter
users who might have seen the
Potential reach
tweet

Any enquiry received from
media outlets, including
newspapers, radio stations,
television and film production
companies.

Mar-17

Sentiment of media coverage
about the trust or in which the trust Positive
is mentioned. It is determined by
analysing the overall tone of the
article and how the trust is
Negative
represented.

Notes

Trend

The most searched for terms
on our website in March were
‘Vacancies’ (31 searches) and
‘who’s who’ (25 searches).

April top tweet:

This tweet received;
3,507 impressions,
140 engagements
8 retweets and
12 likes

April saw a significant increase in positive
coverage about or in which the Trust is
mentioned, taking us above the 50% mark for
the first time since November 2016. The
increase in positive coverage can largely be
attributed to two key stories: the Trust’s
success in delivering the four-hour A&E
standard for 2016-17, and one of our
midwives being named Hospital Health Star by
Good Morning Britain.

HIGHLIGHTS
BME Network

We supported the ‘Narrowing the Gap: Equality and Diversity Matters’ event, which marked the official launch event for the Maternity Department Black and Minority Ethnic (BME) Network.

GMB Health Star

The press release sharing the news of Specialist Midwife Lydia Baker’s success in the GMB Health Stars awards received widespread interest in print and online. The story was also the
most-read news story on our website, and the subject of two of the top three tweets for the month.

Evening Standard

The Trust was featured in the Evening Standard (online and in print), highlighting our success in achieving the four-hour A&E standard in 2016-17.

Executive lead: Lisa Thomson, Director of Communications
Report lead: Adam Watkins, Communications, Engagement and Volunteering Manager

Page 82

Media

Description

Agenda Item 7

Measure

3-4 Well Led / Resources: FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Measure

Description

16/17

YTD

£,000

Income &
Expenditure

Cost
Improvement

Plan (£15m)

Expenditure

The Trust CIP Plan is to
save £15.0m in 2017/18
and £0.56m in April

Capital expenditure against
plan for the month is
£0.2m.
Target is to remain within
Capital Resource Limit.

Better
Payment
Practice
Code

This calculates the
percentage of invoices
paid within 30 days of
invoice receipt. The
externally set target is
100%.

£ 13,176

£

5,410

182%

72.0%

£

£

£,000

4,145 -£

4,145

485

221

n/a

n/a

£

£

485

221

Variation

The Trust's has recorded a deficit of £4.1m at
the end of April, this is £0.2m better than plan.

The Trust delivered £0.485m of CIP in April this
is £0.075m less than plan.

The capital plan has proceeded slower than
forecast as the Trust works to arrange external
funding (loans and donations).

146%

The Trust has a cash balance of £20m. After cash
relating to the £12m capital ring-fencing the Trust
has an underlying cash balance of £8.3m which
is £6.3m more than our £2.0m minimum operating
cash balance as brought forward capital creditors
have not been paid.

89.0%

Year on year performance has improved. The
annual aggregate performance should remain
consistent with the prior year as DH funds the
Trust's operating losses.

all figures in £,000 apart from %measures

Executive lead: Rakesh Patel, Chief Financial Officer
Report lead: John Sangster, Assistant Director of Finance

Agenda Item 7

Cash

The percentage is the
variance between cash
balances held and those
forecasted in our Annual
TDA Plan. Internal
threshold is +/- 10%.

-£ 13,891 -£

£,000

Trend

Page 83

Capital

The Trust's plan is to
deliver a deficit of £17.8m
at year end and an in
month deficit of £4.3m.
The plan includes £10.3m
STF income.

Apr-17

The Single Oversight Framework replaces Monitor’s Risk Assessment Framework and TDA’s Accountability Framework, and will be applied by NHS Improvement to
identify potential support needs of the provider trusts. The framework is applicable from 1st October 2016 and this is a shadow monitoring of the Operational
Performance and Quality of Care sections using September data.

Operational Performance Metrics
Target

A&E

Four hour standard

95%

16/17

Apr-17

95.3% 95.2%

Cancer performance is reported one month in arrears

Reference

Section 4-3

Target

16/17

Urgent GP referral for suspected cancer

85%

87.5% 90.0%

Screening service referral

90%

69.2%

Cancer
RTT

Incomplete pathways 18 week standard

92%

92.0% 91.2%

Diagnostics

Diagnostic procedures 6 weeks standard

99%

98.9% 99.7%

Mar-17

Reference

Agenda Item 7

Appendix1. Externally Reported Framework - NHSI Single Oversight Framework 17/18

Section 4-1

Section 4-2

no
cases

There's been only 6.5 cases of screening service referral during 16/17 with 2 breaches.
No case in March. This is not RAG rated due to lack of statistical significance.

Quality of Care Monitoring Metrics
Target

Staff sickness

3.8%
internal

16/17

4.4%

Month

Reference

3.6%

16/17

Month

Reference

Zero
tolerance

2

0

Section 1-3

NHS England/NHS Improvement Patient
Safety Alerts outstanding

NA

0

0

by exception

Emergency c-section rate

NA

NA

20.4%

Section 1-2

VTE Risk Assessment

95%

93.9% 94.6%

Section 1-1

Occurrence of any Never Event
Section 5-1

Staff turnover
Executive team turnover
Annual NHS Staff Survey - recommended

Organisational place of work
Health
Annual NHS Staff Survey - recommended

internal

14.7% 15.3%

NA

NA

NA

NA

62%

59%
www.nhsstaffsur
veys.com

Safe

NA

72%

68%

Potential under-reporting of patient safety
incidents

NA

NA

NA

Proportion of temporary staff

NA

NA

NA

Clostridium Difficile - variance from plan

39 for
the year

-7

-4

Aggressive cost reduction plans

NA

NA

NA

Clostridium Difficile - infection rate (per
100,000 beddays)

15.9

11.9

4.6

CQC inpatient/MH and community survey

NA

Zero
tolerance

6

1

Written complaints - rate (per 1000 episodes)

NA

Quarterly Staff FFT % recommended - care

NA

place of care

Caring

10%

TBC

MRSA bacteraemias

0.63

0.37

Section 3-1

Hospital Standardised Mortality Ratio
(HSMR)

100

91.7

98.3

73%

61%

NHSE statistics

Hospital Standardised Mortality Ratio Weekend (HSMR)

100

96.3

93.1

15/16 Q4 16/17 Q2

Inpatient scores from FFT − % positive

NA

94.5% 92.4%

A&E scores from FFT − % positive

NA

84.3% 85.8%

Maternity scores from FFT − % positive

NA

100% 98.0%

Effective

Mar-17

Mar-17

Mar-17

Section 3-1

Caring

Section 1-5

Section 1-1

0.957

Summary Hospital Mortality Indicator (SHMI)

1.000

Emergency re-admissions within 30 days of
discharge

NA

7.4%

7.7%

Zero

0

0

Mixed sex accommodation breaches

tolerance

by exception

Page 84

Target

Appendix 1. 17/18 Sustainability and Transformation Fund Control Total and Improvement Trajectories
Background
Key objectives for access to the Sustainability and Transformation Fund (STF) for 17/18 are the deficit reduction / surplus increase and the agreement and delivery against improvement trajectories on
A&E standards. Agreed STF amount is £10,332m for the year.
Improvement trajectories were developed and agreed with the national tripartite - commissioners, NHSE and NHSI - for the 4 hour A&E standard.
Monthly performance against plan / trajectory

Financial Control excluding STF

Actual
Plan

Prerequisite to release the rest of the
fund. Operates on a cumulative basis

May-16

Jun-16

Jul-16

Aug-16

Sep-16

Oct-16

Nov-16

Dec-16

Jan-17

Feb-17

Mar-17

-£4,270

-£3,475

-£2,306

-£4,852

-£2,724

-£1,199

-£2,239

-£3,820

-£2,857

-£2,814

£7,229

May-16

Jun-16

Jul-16

Aug-16

Sep-16

Oct-16

Nov-16

Dec-16

Jan-17

Feb-17

Mar-17

95.3%

95.3%

96.1%

96.0%

95.7%

95.8%

95.2%

93.2%

93.6%

94.2%

94.2%

95.3%

95.3%

95.5%

95.6%

95.6%

95.6%

95.6%

95.3%

95.2%

95.1%

95.0%

£517

£516

£689

£689

£688

£1,033

£1,033

£1,034

£1,205

£1,205

£1,206

figures in £,000

A&E Improvement Trajectory
Fund released if the trust delivers the
national target or is within the tolerance
of the trajectory

Apr-16
-£4,662
-£4,837

Performance

Payment

Actual
Trajectory
YTD
YTD Trajectory

Apr-16
95.2%
95.3%
95.2%
95.3%

Actual
Target

£517
£517

figures in £,000

Monthly and cumulative YTD

Quarter 2

Quarter 3

Quarter 4

May-16

Jun-16

Jul-16

Aug-16

Sep-16

Oct-16

Nov-16

Dec-16

Jan-17

Feb-17

Mar-17

Monthly
Plan

Apr-16
-£4,145
-£4,320

-£3,753

-£2,959

-£1,617

-£4,163

-£2,036

-£166

-£1,206

-£2,786

-£1,652

-£1,609

£8,435

Cumulative
Plan

-£4,145
-£4,320

-£8,073

-£11,032

-£12,649

-£16,812

-£18,848

-£19,014

-£20,220

-£23,006

-£24,658

-£26,267

-£17,832

Page 85

Quarter 1

Total Financial Control

figures in £,000

Agenda Item 7

This page is intentionally left blank

